National Mission for Clean Ganga

SELECTION OF CONSULTANT FIRM

FOR

PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT SERVICES

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (e-Procurement)

RFP No.: Pc-11011/5/2021-NMCG Issued on: 28 September 2021

CONTENTS

S. No.	Contents	Page No
	Disclaimer	3
	Glossary	5
	Invitation for Proposals	7
1	Introduction	8
2	Instructions to Bidders	11
	A. General	
	B. Documents	
	C. Preparation and Submission of Proposal	
	D. Evaluation Process	
	E. Appointment of Consultant	
3	Criteria for Evaluation	28
4	Fraud and corrupt practices	31
5	Pre-Bid Conference	33
6	Miscellaneous	34
	Schedules	35
1	Terms of Reference	36
2	Form of Agreement	46
	Annex-1: Terms of Reference	
	Annex-2: Cost of Services	
	Annex-3: Deliverables	
	Annex-4: Working Hours and Holidays for Consultant's Personnel	
	Annex-5: Payment Schedule	
	Annex-6: Reimbursable Expenses	
	Annex-7: Letter of Award	
	Annex-8: Bank Guarantee for Performance Security	
3	Guidance Note on Conflict of Interest	79
	Appendices	81
1	Appendix-I: Technical Proposal	82
	Form 1: Letter of Proposal	82

	Form 2: Particulars of the Bidder	85
	Form 3: Statement of Legal Capacity	87
	Form 4: Power of Attorney	88
	Form 5: Financial Capacity of Bidder	90
	Form 6: Particulars of Key Personnel	91
	Form 7: Proposed Methodology and Work Plan	92
	Form 8: Abstract of Eligible Assignments of the Bidder	93
	Form 9: Abstract of Eligible Assignments of Key Personnel	94
	Form 10: Eligible Assignments of Bidder	96
	Form 11: Eligible Assignments of Key Personnel	97
	Form 12: Curriculum Vitae (CV) of Key Personnel	99
	Form 13: Certificate for Associate from Statutory Auditor	101
	Form 14: Format of Bid Securing Declaration	102
2	Appendix-II: Financial Proposal	103
	Financial Proposal (BoQ)	103

Disclaimer

The information contained in this Request for Proposals document ("RFP") or subsequently provided to Bidders, whether verbally or in documentary or any other form by or on behalf of the NMCG or any of its employees or advisers, is provided to Bidders on the terms and conditions set out in this RFP and such other terms and conditions subject to which such information is provided.

This RFP is not an agreement and is neither an offer nor invitation by the NMCG to the prospective Bidders or any other person. The purpose of this RFP is to provide interested parties with information that may be useful to them in the formulation of their Proposals pursuant to this RFP. This RFP includes statements, which reflect various assumptions and assessments arrived at by the NMCG in relation to the Consultancy. Such assumptions, assessments and statements do not purport to contain all the information that each Bidder may require. This RFP may not be appropriate for all persons, and it is not possible for the NMCG, its employees or advisers to consider the objectives, technical expertise and particular needs of each party who reads or uses this RFP. The assumptions, assessments, statements and information contained in this RFP, may not be complete, accurate, adequate or correct. Each Bidder should, therefore, conduct its own investigations and analysis and should check the accuracy, adequacy, correctness, reliability and completeness of the assumptions, assessments and information contained in this RFP and obtain independent advice from appropriate sources.

Information provided in this RFP to the Bidders is on a wide range of matters, some of which depends upon interpretation of law. The information given is not an exhaustive account of statutory requirements and should not be regarded as a complete or authoritative statement of law. The NMCG accepts no responsibility for the accuracy or otherwise for any interpretation or opinion on the law expressed herein.

The NMCG, its employees and advisers make no representation or warranty and shall have no liability to any person including any Bidder under any law, statute, rules or regulations or tort, principles of restitution or unjust enrichment or otherwise for any loss, damages, cost or expense which may arise from or be incurred or suffered on account of anything contained in this RFP or otherwise, including the accuracy, adequacy, correctness, reliability or completeness of the RFP and any assessment, assumption, statement or information contained therein or deemed to form part of this RFP or arising in any way in this Selection Process.

The NMCG also accepts no liability of any nature whether resulting from negligence or otherwise, howsoever caused, arising from reliance of any Bidder upon the statements contained in this RFP.

The NMCG may in its absolute discretion, but without being under any obligation to do so, update, amend or supplement the information, assessment or assumption contained in this RFP.

The issue of this RFP does not imply that the NMCG is bound to select a Bidder or to appoint the Selected Bidder, as the case may be, for the Consultancy and the NMCG reserves the right to reject all or any of the Proposals without assigning any reasons whatsoever.

The Bidder shall bear all its costs associated with or relating to the preparation and submission of its Proposal including but not limited to preparation, copying, postage, delivery fees, expenses associated with any demonstrations or presentations which may be required by the NMCG or any other costs incurred in connection with or relating to its Proposal. All such costs

and expenses will remain with the Bidder and the NMCG shall not be liable in any manner whatsoever for the same or for any other costs or other expenses incurred by an Bidder in preparation or submission of the Proposal, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Selection Process.

Glossary

Agreement As defined in Schedule-2

Agreement Value As defined in Clause 6.1.2 of Schedule-2

Applicable Laws

As defined in Schedule-2

Associate

As defined in Clause 2.3.3

Authorised Representative

As defined in Clause 2.13.3

NMCG

As defined in Clause 1.1.2

Bid Securing Declaration

As defined in Clause 2.20

As defined in Clause 2.1.1

Bidder As defined in Clause 2.1.1
Conditions of Eligibility As defined in Clause 2.2.1
Conflict of Interest As defined in Clause 2.3.1

Consultancy Team As defined in Clause 2.1.4

CPP Portal Central Public Procurement Portal

CV Curriculum Vitae

DBFOT Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer

Documents As defined in Clause 2.12

Effective Date As defined in Clause 2.1 of Schedule-2

Eligible Assignments As defined in Clause 3.1.4

Financial Proposal As defined in Clause 2.15.1

Form of Agreement Form of Agreement as in Schedule-2

INR, Re, Rs. Indian Rupee(s)

Key Date or KD As defined in [Paragraph 6.2] of Schedule-1

Key Personnel As defined in Clause 2.14.6

LOA Letter of Award

Member As defined in Clause 2.3.3 (a)

Official Website As defined in Clause 1.11.2

Personnel As defined in Clause 1.1.1(1) of Schedule-2

PPP Public Private Partnership - Project means a project

based on a contract or concession agreement between a Government or statutory entity on the one side and a private sector company on the other side, for delivering an infrastructure service on payment of user charges"

Prohibited PracticesAs defined in Clause 4.1ProposalAs defined in Clause 1.2Proposal Due Date or PDDAs defined in Clauses 1.8

RFP As defined in Disclaimer

Selected Bidder As defined in Clause 1.6
Selection Process As defined in Clause 1.6

Services As defined in Clause 1.1.1(n) of Schedule-2

Sole Firm As defined in Clause 2.1.1

Statutory Auditor An Auditor appointed under Applicable Laws

STP Sewage Treatment Plant

Technical Proposal As defined in Clause 2.14.1 **TOR** As defined in Clause 1.1.4

US\$ United States Dollar

The words and expressions beginning with capital letters and defined in this document shall, unless repugnant to the context, have the meaning ascribed thereto herein.

Invitation for Proposals

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

- 1.1.1 Government of India, has approved the Namami Gange Programme as an integrated approach for effective abatement of pollution in river Ganga. The 'Namami Gange Programme' involves enormous level of development work to be carried out across the identified cities and villages in the eleven States identified under the programme. The 'Namami Gange Programme' is an integrated Conservation Mission, approved as a 'Flagship Programme' by the Union Government in June, 2014 with budget outlay of Rs.20,000 Crore to accomplish the objectives of effective abatement of pollution, conservation and rejuvenation of national river the Ganga.
- 1.1.2 National Mission for Clean Ganga (NMCG) is the central level coordinating body supported by States Mission for Clean Ganga (SMCGs) for successful implementation of the programme. NMCG is the implementation wing of National Ganga Council which was set up in October, 2016 under the River Ganga (Rejuvenation, Protection and Management) Authorities order, 2016. The aim of the NMCG is abatement of pollution, conservation and rejuvenation of National River Ganga. The State Mission for Clean Ganga (SMCGs) have been established by the respective State Governments to co-ordinate & implement the NGRBA Programme activities at the state level. Investment proposals will be prepared and implemented by executing agencies selected by SMCGs.
- 1.1.3 The main objective of the proposed consultancy assignment is to provide support to NMCG and SMCGs to ensure that all procurement management aspects including preparation of bid documents and allotment of contract the Project, is satisfactorily implemented as per the Procurement Manual and the Procurement Plan.
- 1.1.4 In pursuance of the above, the NMCG has decided to carry out the process for the selection of a dedicated consultancy firm for providing Procurement Management Support Services (the "Consultant"). The detailed scope of work of the Consultant shall be in accordance with the Terms of Reference specified at Schedule-1 (the "TOR").

1.2 Request for Proposals

The NMCG invites proposals (the "**Proposals**") through Central Public Procurement Portal (https://eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app) from firms, who meet the qualification criteria.

1.3 Due diligence by Bidders

Bidders are encouraged to inform themselves fully about the assignment and the local conditions before submitting the Proposal by paying a visit to the office of NMCG sending written queries to the NMCG, and attending a Pre-Bid Conference on the date and time specified in Clause 1.10.

1.4 Availability of RFP Document

Complete RFP document is available for download at website of the NMCG (http://nmcg.nic.in/) and Central Public Procurement Portal (https://eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app).

1.5 Validity of the Proposal

The Proposal shall be valid for a period of not less than 180 days from the Proposal Due Date (the "PDD").

1.6 Brief description of the Selection Process

The NMCG has adopted a single-stage two-envelope selection process (collectively the "Selection Process") for evaluating the Proposals comprising technical and financial bids to be submitted in e-procurement portal. In the first stage, a technical evaluation will be carried out as specified in Clause 3.1. Based on this technical evaluation, a list of short-listed Bidders shall be prepared as specified in Clause 3.2. In the second stage, a financial evaluation will be carried out as specified in Clause 3.3. Proposals will finally be ranked according to their combined technical and financial scores as specified in Clause 3.4. The first ranked Bidder shall be selected for negotiation (the "Selected Bidder") while the second ranked Bidder will be kept in reserve.

1.7 Currency conversion rate and payment

- 1.7.1 For the purposes of technical evaluation of Bidders, [Rs.75 (Rupees Seventy-Five)] per US\$ shall be considered as the applicable currency conversion rate. In case of any other currency, the same shall first be converted to US\$ as on the date 60 (sixty) days prior to the Proposal Due Date, and the amount so derived in US\$ shall be converted into INR at the aforesaid rate. The conversion rate of such currencies shall be the daily representative exchange rates published by the International Monetary Fund for the relevant date.
- 1.7.2 All payments to the Consultant shall be made in INR in accordance with the provisions of this RFP. The Consultant may convert INR into any foreign currency as per Applicable Laws and the exchange risk, if any, shall be borne by the Consultant.

1.8 Schedule of Selection Process

The NMCG would endeavour to adhere to the following schedule:

S.No.	Event Description	Date and Time	
1.	RFP Publish date	28 th September 2021	
2.	RFP download start date and time	28 th September 2021from 16:00	
		Hrs.	
3.	Clarification start date & time	28th September from 18:00 Hrs.	
4.	Pre-Bid Conference by Virtual Meeting Platform	6 th October 2021 at 11:30 Hrs.	
5.	Clarification end date and time	6 th October 2021 upto 17:00 Hrs.	

6.	NMCG response to queries	12 th October 2021
7.	Bid Submission Start Date & Time	21 st October2021 from 11:00 Hrs.
8.	Bid Submission end date & time	29 th October 2021 upto 12:00 Hrs.
9.	Last date & time for downloading the RFP	29 th October 2021 upto 12:00 Hrs
10.	Last date & time for submission (upload) of online bidding document (Proposal Due Date or PDD)	29 th October 2021 upto 12:00 Hrs
11.	Opening of Technical Proposals through e-procurement portal	29 th October 2021 upto 12:30 Hrs
12.	Presentation on Approach & Methodology by Virtual Meeting Platform	To be informed later
13.	Opening of Financial Proposal through e- procurement portal	To be informed later
14.	Signing of Agreement	Within 15 days of acceptance of LoA
15.	Validity of Proposal	180 days from Proposal Due Date

1.9 Deleted

1.10 Pre-Bid Conference

The Pre-Bid Conference will be conducted virtually on the date and time specified in Clause 1.8. The advisory along with details of meeting link will be uploaded two days prior to the meeting date.

1.11 Communications

1.11.1 Communications shall be addressed to:

Shri. Binod Kumar

Director (Projects)

National Mission for Clean Ganga,

1st Floor, Major Dhyan Chand National Stadium,

India Gate, New Delhi – 110002

Phone: +91 11 - 23072900

Email: director.projects@nmcg.nic.in

1.11.2 The **Official Website** of the NMCG is:

http://www.nmcg.nic.in

1.11.3 Communications, including the envelopes (if any), should contain the following information, to be marked at the top in bold letters:

RFP Notice No. *****

Selection of Consultant Firm for Procurement

Management Support Services

2. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

A. GENERAL

2.1 Scope of Proposal

- 2.1.1 Detailed description of the objectives, scope of services, Deliverables and other requirements relating to this Consultancy are specified in this RFP. The Bidder shall be a Sole Firm /Single entity or a consortium/joint venture of firms and, the manner in which the Proposal is required to be submitted, evaluated and accepted is explained in this RFP. If the Bidder is a consortium/joint venture the combined Technical and Financial capacity of all members shall be considered for determining the eligibility of the Bidder as per clause 2.2.2 of the RFP document. However maximum numbers of members/partners are limited to two and other terms and conditions of the RFP document are applicable to each member of the consortium/joint venture. Also all members of the consortium are jointly and severally responsible for performance of the assignment. Bidder shall also submit the details of each member of the consortium in Form 2 of Appendix I: Particulars of the Bidder and a Joint Bid Agreement with the provisions mentioned in Clause 2.1.5.
- 2.1.2 Bidders are advised that the selection of Consultant shall be on the basis of an evaluation by the NMCG through the Selection Process specified in this RFP. Bidders shall be deemed to have understood and agreed that no explanation or justification for any aspect of the Selection Process will be given and that the NMCG's decisions are without any right of appeal whatsoever.
- 2.1.3 The Bidder shall submit its Proposal through e-procurement portal (https://eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app) in the form and manner specified in this RFP. The Technical proposal shall be submitted in the form at Appendix-I and the Financial Proposal (BoQ) shall be submitted as stipulated in Appendix-II. Upon selection, the Bidder shall be required to enter into an agreement with the NMCG in the form specified at Schedule-2.

2.1.4 Key Personnel

The Consultancy Team shall consist of the following key personnel (the "**Key Personnel**") who shall discharge their respective responsibilities as specified below:

S.	Category	Accredited / Recognized ¹ Educational	Nos. &	Man-
No.	Name	Qualification and	Location	months
	- ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Expertise required		
1.	Team Leader	 Engineer/MBA with more than 15 years of work experience in public procurement Should have certificate/diploma in public procurement Should have in depth knowledge and understanding of the procurement procedure & guidelines, technical and commercial aspects of procurement for projects funded by GoI/multilateral agencies. Should have undertaken atleast three assignments in Works as defined in Clause 3.1.4 (B) (i) and atleast 2 assignments as defined in Clause 3.1.4 (B) (ii). 	1 (Delhi)	36
2.	Procurement Specialist - PPP	 Engineer/MBA with more than 10 years of work experience in PPP procurement. Well acquainted with the procurement procedure & guidelines of Govt. of India and multilateral agencies such as World Bank, JICA etc. Should have undertaken atleast five assignments under PPP in works as defined in Clause 3.1.4 (B) (i). 	1 (Delhi)	36
3.	Procurement Specialist	 Engineer/MBA with more than 10 years of work experience in public procurement Should have certificate/diploma in public procurement Should have in depth knowledge and understanding of the procurement procedure & guidelines for projects funded by GoI/multilateral agencies. Should have undertaken atleast 3 assignments in Works as defined in Clause 3.1.4 (B) (i) and atleast 2 assignments as defined in Clause 3.1.4 (B) (ii). 	3 (Delhi)	36x3= 108
4.	Procurement Specialist (Goods & Services)	Engineer/MBA with more than 10 years of work experience in public procurement	1 (Delhi)	36

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ As per the accreditation system in any country of education in which the educational qualification is obtained

S.	Category	Accredited / Recognized ¹ Educational	Nos. &	Man-
No.	Name	Qualification and	Location	months
		Expertise required		
		 Should have knowledge in procurement procedure & guidelines of Govt. of India for procurement of Goods and Services. Should have knowledge & experience in handling procurement through Government eMarket Place (GeM). Should have undertaken atleast five in Goods and Services procurement as defined in Clause 3.1.4 (B) (ii). 		
5.	Assistant Procurement Specialist	• Engineer/MBA with minimum 5 years of work experience in procurement out of which 3 years of specific experience in government/public procurement	3 (Delhi)	36x3= 108
	Total Key Personnel			

- 2.1.5 If the Bidder is a consortium then, the members of the Consortium shall enter into a binding Joint Bidding Agreement in an agreeable format, for the purpose of making and submitting a Bid. The Jt. Bidding Agreement, to be submitted along with the Bid, shall, *inter alia*:
 - i. Nominate one of the Members as the Lead Member of the Consortium.
 - ii. Convey the intent to enter into the agreement by the Lead Member and subsequently perform all the obligations of the Consultant in terms of the agreement, in case the assignment is awarded to the Consortium;
 - iii. Clearly outline the proposed roles and responsibilities, if any, of each member; and

Include a statement to the effect that all members of the Consortium shall be liable jointly and severally for all obligations of the Consultant in relation to the Project until the completion of the assignment.

2.2 Conditions of Eligibility of Bidders

- 2.2.1 Bidders must read carefully the minimum conditions of eligibility (the "Conditions of Eligibility") provided herein. Proposals of only those Bidders who satisfy the Conditions of Eligibility will be considered for evaluation.
- 2.2.2 To be eligible for evaluation of its Proposal, the Bidder shall fulfil the following:
 - (A) **Technical Capacity**: The Bidder shall have, over the past 10 (ten) years preceding one (1) month of the PDD, has completed a minimum of 3 (three) Eligible Assignments in similar nature as described in clause 3.1.4 (A). However ongoing projects will be considered for evaluation only if the Bidder has received 80% of the professional fees /assignment value for the project.

- (B) **Financial Capacity**: The Bidder shall have annual turnover of **Rs.20 (twenty) Crore** per annum during any three financial years between FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21.
- (C) Availability of Key Personnel: The Bidder shall offer and make available all Key Personnel meeting the requirements specified in clause 2.1.4.
- 2.2.3 The Bidder shall enclose with its Proposal, copy of annual audited balance sheet and P&L statement for the respective periods.
- 2.2.4 The Bidder should submit a Power of Attorney as per the format at Form-4 of Appendix-I; provided, however, that such Power of Attorney would not be required if the Proposal is signed by a partner of the Bidder, in case the Bidder is a partnership firm or limited liability partnership.
- 2.2.5 Any entity which has been barred by the Central Government, any State Government, a statutory authority or a public sector undertaking, as the case may be, from participating in any project, and the bar subsists as on the date of Proposal, would not be eligible to submit a Proposal either by itself or through its Associate.
- 2.2.6 A Bidder or its Associate should have, during the last three years, neither failed to perform on any agreement, as evidenced by imposition of a penalty by an arbitral or judicial authority or a judicial pronouncement or arbitration award against the Bidder or its Associate, nor been expelled from any project or agreement nor have had any agreement terminated for breach by such Bidder or its Associate.
- 2.2.7 While submitting a Proposal, the Bidder should attach clearly marked and referenced continuation sheets in the event that the space provided in the specified forms in the Appendices is insufficient. Alternatively, Bidders may format the specified forms making due provision for incorporation of the requested information.

2.3 Conflict of Interest

- 2.3.1 An Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest that may affect the Selection Process or the Consultancy (the "Conflict of Interest"). Any Bidder found to have a Conflict of Interest shall be disqualified. In the event of disqualification, the NMCG shall have the right to take necessary actions as per the Bid Securing Declaration.
- 2.3.2 The NMCG requires that the Consultant provides professional, objective, and impartial advice and at all times hold the NMCG's interest's paramount, avoid conflicts with other assignments or its own interests, and act without any consideration for future work. The Consultant shall not accept or engage in any assignment that would be in conflict with its prior or current obligations to other clients, or that may place it in a position of not being able to carry out the assignment in the best interests of the NMCG.
- 2.3.3 Some guiding principles for identifying and addressing Conflicts of Interest have been illustrated in the Guidance Note at Schedule-3. Without limiting the generality of the above, a Bidder shall be deemed to have a Conflict of Interest affecting the Selection Process, if:

- the Bidder, or Associate (or any constituent thereof) and any other Bidder, its (a) consortium member or Associate (or any constituent thereof) have common controlling shareholders or other ownership interest; provided that this disqualification shall not apply in cases where the direct or indirect shareholding or ownership interest of an Bidder, its Member or Associate (or any shareholder thereof having a shareholding of more than 5% (five per cent) of the paid up and subscribed share capital of such Bidder, Member or Associate, as the case may be) in the other Bidder, its consortium member or Associate is less than 5 per cent of the subscribed and paid up equity share capital thereof; provided further that this disqualification shall not apply to any ownership by a bank, insurance company, pension fund or a public financial institution referred to in sub-section (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013. For the purposes of this Clause, indirect shareholding held through one or more intermediate persons shall be computed as follows: (aa) where any intermediary is controlled by a person through management control or otherwise, the entire shareholding held by such controlled intermediary in any other person (the "Subject Person") shall be taken into account for computing the shareholding of such controlling person in the Subject Person; and (bb) subject always to sub-clause (aa) above, where a person does not exercise control over an intermediary, which has shareholding in the Subject Person, the computation of indirect shareholding of such person in the Subject Person shall be undertaken on a proportionate basis; provided, however, that no such shareholding shall be reckoned under this sub-clause (bb) if the shareholding of such person in the intermediary is less than 26% (twenty six per cent) of the subscribed and paid up equity shareholding of such intermediary; or
- (b) a constituent of such Bidder is also a constituent of another Bidder; or
- (c) such Bidder or its Associate receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy or grant from any other Bidder or its Associate; or
- (d) such Bidder has the same legal representative for purposes of this Proposal as any other Bidder; or
- (e) such Bidder has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to each other's information about, or to influence the Proposal of either or each of the other Bidder; or
- (f) there is a conflict among this and other consulting assignments of the Bidder (including its personnel) and any subsidiaries or entities controlled by such Bidder or having common controlling shareholders. The duties of the Consultant will depend on the circumstances of each case. While providing consultancy services to the NMCG for this particular assignment, the Consultant shall not take up any assignment that by its nature will result in conflict with the present assignment; or
- (g) a firm which has been engaged by the NMCG to provide goods or works or services for a project, and its Associates, will be disqualified from providing consulting services for the same project save and except as provided in Clause 2.3.4; conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation

- or implementation of a project, and its Members or Associates, will be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or services related to the same project; or
- (h) the Bidder, its Member or Associate (or any constituent thereof), and the bidder or Concessionaire, if any, for the Project, its contractor(s) or sub-contractor(s) (or any constituent thereof) have common controlling shareholders or other ownership interest; provided that this disqualification shall not apply in cases where the direct or indirect shareholding or ownership interest of an Bidder, its Member or Associate (or any shareholder thereof having a shareholding of more than 5% (five per cent) of the paid up and subscribed share capital of such Bidder, Member or Associate, as the case may be,) in the bidder or Concessionaire, if any, or its contractor(s) or sub-contractor(s) is less than 5% (five per cent) of the paid up and subscribed share capital of such Concessionaire or its contractor(s) or sub-contractor(s); provided further that this disqualification shall not apply to ownership by a bank, insurance company, pension fund or a Public Financial Institution referred to in sub-section (72) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013. For the purposes of this sub-clause (h), indirect shareholding shall be computed in accordance with the provisions of sub-clause (a) above.

For purposes of this RFP, Associate means, in relation to the Bidder, a person who controls, is controlled by, or is under the common control with such Bidder (the "Associate"). As used in this definition, the expression "control" means, with respect to a person which is a company or corporation, the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% (fifty per cent) of the voting shares of such person, and with respect to a person which is not a company or corporation, the power to direct the management and policies of such person by operation of law or by contract.

2.3.4 An Bidder eventually appointed to provide Consultancy for this Project, and its Associates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or services related to the construction and operation of the same Project and any breach of this obligation shall be construed as Conflict of Interest; provided that the restriction herein shall not apply after a period of 5 (five) years from the completion of this assignment or to consulting assignments granted by banks/ lenders at any time; provided further that this restriction shall not apply to consultancy/ advisory services performed for the NMCG in continuation of this Consultancy or to any subsequent consultancy/ advisory services performed for the NMCG in accordance with the rules of the NMCG. For the avoidance of doubt, an entity affiliated with the Consultant shall include a partner in the Consultant's firm or a person who holds more than 5% (five per cent) of the subscribed and paid up share capital of the Consultant, as the case may be, and any Associate thereof.

2.4 Number of Proposals

No Bidder or its Associate shall submit more than one Proposal for the Consultancy. A Bidder applying individually or as an Associate shall not be entitled to submit another Proposal either individually or as a member of any consortium, as the case may be.

2.5 Cost of Proposal

The Bidders shall be responsible for all of the costs associated with the preparation of their Proposals and their participation in the Selection Process including subsequent negotiation, visits to the NMCG, Project site etc. The NMCG will not be responsible or in any way liable for such costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Selection Process.

2.6 Deleted

2.7 Acknowledgement by Bidder

- 2.7.1 It shall be deemed that by submitting the Proposal, the Bidder has:
 - (a) made a complete and careful examination of the RFP;
 - (b) received all relevant information requested from the NMCG;
 - (c) acknowledged and accepted the risk of inadequacy, error or mistake in the information provided in the RFP or furnished by or on behalf of the NMCG;
 - (d) satisfied itself about all matters, things and information, necessary and required for submitting an informed Proposal and performance of all of its obligations thereunder;
 - (e) acknowledged that it does not have a Conflict of Interest; and
 - (f) agreed to be bound by the undertaking provided by it under and in terms hereof.
- 2.7.2 The NMCG shall not be liable for any omission, mistake or error on the part of the Bidder in respect of any of the above or on account of any matter or thing arising out of or concerning or relating to RFP or the Selection Process, including any error or mistake therein or in any information or data given by the NMCG.

2.8 Right to reject any or all Proposals

- 2.8.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in this RFP, the NMCG reserves the right to accept or reject any Proposal and to annul the Selection Process and reject all Proposals, at any time without any liability or any obligation for such acceptance, rejection or annulment, and without assigning any reasons thereof.
- 2.8.2 Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 2.8.1, the NMCG reserves the right to reject any Proposal if:
 - (a) at any time, a material misrepresentation is made or discovered, or
 - (b) the Bidder does not provide, within the time specified by the NMCG, the supplemental information sought by the NMCG for evaluation of the Proposal.

Misrepresentation/improper response by the Bidder may lead to the disqualification of the Bidder. If such disqualification / rejection occurs after the Proposals have been opened and the highest ranking Bidder gets disqualified / rejected, then the NMCG reserves the right to consider the next best Bidder, or take any other measure as may be

deemed fit in the sole discretion of the NMCG, including annulment of the Selection Process.

B. DOCUMENTS

2.9 Contents of the RFP

This RFP comprises the Disclaimer set forth hereinabove, the contents as listed below and will additionally include any Addendum / Amendment issued in accordance with Clause 2.11:

Request for Proposal

- 1 Introduction
- 2 Instructions to Bidders
- 3 Criteria for Evaluation
- 4 Fraud and corrupt practices
- 5 Pre-Bid Conference
- 6 Miscellaneous

Schedules

1 Terms of Reference

2 Form of Agreement

Annex-1: Terms of Reference

Annex-2: Cost of Services

Annex-3: Deliverables

Annex-4: Working Hours and Holidays for Consultant's Personnel

Annex-5: Payment Schedule

Annex-6: Reimbursable Expenses

Annex-7: Letter of Award

Annex-8: Bank Guarantee for Performance Security

3 Guidance Note on Conflict of Interest

Appendices

Appendix-I: Technical Proposal

Form-1: Letter of Proposal

Form-2: Particulars of the Bidder

Form-3: Statement of Legal Capacity

Form-4: Power of Attorney

Form-5: Financial Capacity of Bidder

Form-6: Particulars of Key Personnel

Form-7: Proposed Methodology and Work Plan

Form-8: Abstract of Eligible Assignments of Bidder

Form-9: Abstract of Eligible Assignments of Key Personnel

Form-10: Eligible Assignments of Bidder

Form-11: Eligible Assignments of Key Personnel

Form-12: Curriculum Vitae (CV) of Key Personnel

Form-13: Certificate for Associates

Form-14: Format for Bid Securing Declaration

Appendix-II: Financial Proposal

Financial Proposal (BoQ)

2.10 Clarifications

2.10.1 Bidders requiring any clarification on the RFP may submit their queries to the NMCG through e-procurement portal before the date mentioned in the Schedule of Selection Process at Clause 1.8.

The NMCG shall endeavour to respond to the queries within the period specified therein but not later than the date specified in the clause 1.8. The NMCG will post the reply to all such queries on the e-procurement portal and without identifying the source of queries. NMCG shall not be held responsible in any manner if prospective Bidders miss any notifications placed on e-procurement Portal.

2.10.2 The NMCG reserves the right not to respond to any questions or provide any clarifications, in its sole discretion, and nothing in this Clause 2.10 shall be construed as obliging the NMCG to respond to any question or to provide any clarification.

2.11 Amendment of RFP

- 2.11.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Proposal, the NMCG may, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to clarifications requested by an Bidder, modify the RFP document by the issuance of Addendum/ Amendment and posting it on e-procurement portal.
- 2.11.2 In order to afford the Bidders a reasonable time for taking an amendment into account, or for any other reason, the NMCG may, in its sole discretion, extend the Proposal Due Date.

C. PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL

2.12 Language

The Proposal with all accompanying documents (the "**Documents**") and all communications in relation to or concerning the Selection Process shall be in English language and strictly on the forms provided in this RFP. No supporting document or printed literature shall be submitted with the Proposal unless specifically asked for and in case any of these Documents is in another language, it must be accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in English, in which case, for all purposes of interpretation of the Proposal, the translation in English shall prevail.

2.13 Format and signing of Proposal

2.13.1 The Bidder shall provide all the information sought under this RFP. The NMCG would evaluate only those Proposals that are received in the specified forms and complete in all respects.

2.13.2 Deleted

- 2.13.3 The Proposal shall be typed or written in indelible ink and signed by the authorised signatory of the Bidder who shall initial each page. In case of printed and published Documents, only the cover shall be initialled. All the alterations, omissions, additions, or any other amendments made to the Proposal shall be initialled by the person(s) signing the Proposal. At the time of uploading, the Proposals shall be digitally signed by the bidder or a person or persons duly authorised to bind the bidder to the contract (the "Authorised Representative") as detailed below:
 - (a) by the proprietor, in case of a proprietary firm; or
 - (b) by a partner, in case of a partnership firm and/or a limited liability partnership; or
 - (c) by a duly authorised person holding the Power of Attorney, in case of a Limited Company or a corporation; or

A copy of the Power of Attorney certified under the hands of a partner or director of the Bidder and notarised by a notary public in the form specified in Appendix-I (Form-4) shall accompany the Proposal.

2.13.4 Bidders should note the Proposal Due Date, as specified in Clause 1.8, for submission of Proposals. Except as specifically provided in this RFP, no supplementary material will be entertained by the NMCG, and that evaluation will be carried out only on the basis of Documents received by the closing time of Proposal Due Date as specified in Clause 2.17.1. Bidders will ordinarily not be asked to provide additional material information or documents subsequent to the date of submission, and unsolicited material if submitted will be summarily rejected. For the avoidance of doubt, the NMCG reserves the right to seek clarifications under and in accordance with the provisions of Clause 2.24.

2.14 Technical Proposal

- 2.14.1 Bidders shall submit the technical proposal in the formats at Appendix-I (the "Technical Proposal").
- 2.14.2 While submitting the Technical Proposal, the Bidder shall, in particular, ensure that:

- (a) Scanned copy of the Bid Securing Declaration is provided;
- (b) all forms are submitted in the prescribed formats and signed by the prescribed signatories;
- (c) Power of Attorney, if applicable, is executed as per Applicable Laws;
- (d) CVs of all key Personnel have been included.
- (e) Key Personnel have been proposed only if they meet the Conditions of Eligibility laid down at Clause 2.1.4 of the RFP;
- (f) no alternative proposal for any Key Personnel is being made and only one CV for each position has been furnished;
- (g) the CVs have been recently signed and dated by the respective Personnel and countersigned by the Bidder. Unsigned / countersigned CVs shall be rejected;
- (h) the CVs shall contain an undertaking from the respective Key Personnel about his/her availability for the duration specified in the RFP;
- (i) Key Personnel proposed have good working knowledge of English language;
- (j) Key Personnel would be available for the period indicated in the TOR;
- (k) no Key Personnel should have attained the age of 50 (Fifty) years at the time of submitting the proposal; and
- (l) the proposal is responsive in terms of Clause 2.22.3.
- (m) In addition to the above each Bidder is required to fill and submit a soft copy of the data sheet in MS Excel format through email before 5.00 PM of the day following the Proposal Due Date. The Excel sheet is available in the website of NMCG for downloading purpose.
- 2.14.3 Failure to comply with the requirements spelt out in this Clause 2.14-shall make the Proposal liable to be rejected.
- 2.14.4 If an individual Key Personnel makes a false averment regarding his qualification, experience or other particulars, or his commitment regarding availability for the Project is not fulfilled at any stage after signing of the Agreement, he shall be liable to be debarred for any future assignment of the NMCG for a period of 5 (five) years. The award of this Consultancy to the Bidder may also be liable to cancellation in such an event.
- 2.14.5 The Technical Proposal shall not include any financial information relating to the Financial Proposal.
- 2.14.6 The proposed team shall be composed of experts and specialists (the "**Key Personnel**") in their respective areas of expertise, such that the Consultant should be able to complete the Consultancy within the specified time schedule. The Key Personnel specified in Clause 2.1.4 shall be included in the proposed team of Key Personnel. Other

competent and experienced Key Personnel in the relevant areas of expertise must be added as required for successful completion of this Consultancy. The CV of each such Key Personnel, if any, should also be submitted in the format at Form-12 of Appendix-I.

2.14.7 Deleted.

- 2.14.8 The NMCG reserves the right to verify all statements, information and documents, submitted by the Bidder in response to the RFP. Any such verification or the lack of such verification by the NMCG to undertake such verification shall not relieve the Bidder of its obligations or liabilities hereunder nor will it affect any rights of the NMCG thereunder.
- 2.14.9 In case it is found during the evaluation or at any time before signing of the Agreement or after its execution and during the period of subsistence thereof, that one or more of the eligibility conditions have not been met by the Bidder or the Bidder has made material misrepresentation or has given any materially incorrect or false information, the Bidder shall be disqualified forthwith if not yet appointed as the Consultant either by issue of the LOA or entering into of the Agreement, and if the Selected Bidder has already been issued the LOA or has entered into the Agreement, as the case may be, the same shall, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained therein or in this RFP, be liable to be terminated, by a communication in writing by the NMCG without the NMCG being liable in any manner whatsoever to the Bidder or Consultant, as the case may be.

In such an event, the NMCG shall have the right to take necessary actions as per the Bid Securing Declaration.

2.15 Financial Proposal

- 2.15.1 Financial proposal to be submitted online only through e-procurement portal and no hard copy should be submitted. Bidders are required to download the BOQ file and duly complete the blue coloured (unprotected) cells with their respective financial quotes and other details (such as name of the bidder etc.). No other cells should be changed. Once the details have been completed, the bidder should save it and submit the digitally signed BoQ, without changing the filename. If the BOQ file is found to be modified by the bidder, the bid will be rejected.
- 2.15.2 While submitting the Financial Proposal, the Bidder shall ensure the following:
 - (i) All the costs associated with the assignment shall be included in the Financial Proposal. These shall normally cover remuneration for all the Personnel, equipment, printing of documents, etc. The total amount indicated in the Financial Proposal shall be without any condition attached or subject to any assumption, and shall be final and binding. In case any assumption or condition is indicated in the Financial Proposal, it shall be considered non-responsive and liable to be rejected.
 - (ii) The Financial Proposal shall take into account all expenses and tax liabilities. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that all taxes shall be deemed to be included in the costs shown under different items of the Financial Proposal.

Further, all payments shall be subject to deduction of taxes at source as per Applicable Laws.

(iii) Costs (including break down of costs) shall be expressed in INR.

2.16 Submission of Proposal

- 2.16.1 The Bidders shall upload the electronic copy of the Proposal (with all pages numbered serially and by giving an index of submissions) through e-procurement portal after digitally signing of all the documents.
- 2.16.2 The Bidder shall upload the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal separately by using the appropriate sections on e-procurement portal.
- 2.16.3 NMCG, if required, will request the Bidder to submit the hard copy of original Bid Securing Declaration and Power of Attorney for scrutiny.
- 2.16.4 The Proposal shall be made in the Forms specified in this RFP. Any attachment to such Forms must be provided on separate sheets of paper and only information that is directly relevant should be provided. This may include photocopies of the relevant pages of printed documents. No separate documents like printed annual statements, company brochures, copy of contracts etc. will be entertained.
- 2.16.5 The rates quoted shall be firm throughout the period of performance of the assignment and discharge of all obligations of the Consultant under the Agreement.

2.17 Proposal Due Date

- 2.17.1 Proposal should be submitted on or before the specified time on Proposal Due Date as mentioned in Clause 1.8 at the e-procurement portal.
- 2.17.2 The NMCG may, in its sole discretion, extend the Proposal Due Date by issuing an Addendum in accordance with Clause 2.11 uniformly for all Bidders.

2.18 Late Proposals

Bidders are encouraged to submit their proposals online well in advance before the prescribed due date and time to avoid any delay or problem during the bid submission process. The Tender Inviting Authority will not be held responsible for any sort of delay or the difficulties faced during the submission of bids online by the bidders due to link failure/ internet problem etc.

2.19 Modification/ substitution/ withdrawal of Proposals

- 2.19.1 The Bidder may modify their bids by using the appropriate option for bid modification on e-procurement portal prior to Proposal Due Date. No Proposal shall be modified, substituted, or withdrawn by the Bidder on or after the Proposal Due Date.
- 2.19.2 Deleted
- 2.19.3 Deleted

2.20 Bid Securing Declaration

The Bidder shall furnish as part of its Proposal, 'Bid Securing Declaration Form' as per the format at Form-14 of Appendix-I.

2.21 Performance Security

- 2.21.1 The Bidder, by submitting its Proposal pursuant to this RFP, shall be deemed to have acknowledged that without prejudice to the NMCG's any other right or remedy hereunder or in law or otherwise, its Performance Security shall be forfeited and appropriated by the NMCG as the mutually agreed pre-estimated compensation and damages payable to the NMCG for, *inter alia*, the time, cost and effort of the NMCG in regard to the RFP, including the consideration and evaluation of the Proposal, under the following conditions:
 - (a) If an Bidder engages in any of the Prohibited Practices specified in Clause 4.1 of this RFP;
 - (b) if the Bidder is found to have a Conflict of Interest as specified in Clause 2.3; and
 - (c) if the Selected Bidder commits a breach of the Agreement.
- 2.21.2 An amount equal to 3% (three percent) of the Agreement Value shall be deemed to be the Performance Security for the purposes of this Clause 2.21, which may be forfeited and appropriated in accordance with the provisions hereof.
- 2.21.3 If the selected Bidders fails to submit the Performance Guarantee before the signing of the agreement, the LoA shall be deemed to be withdrawn and NMCG shall have the right to take necessary actions as per the Bid Securing Declaration.
- 2.21.4 The Performance Guarantee shall remain valid up to 180 days beyond the end of the contract period. In case any extension in the contract period, accordingly, the validity of the Performance Guarantee shall be extended.

D. EVALUATION PROCESS

2.22 Evaluation of Proposals

- 2.22.1 The electronic "Technical Proposals" shall be opened first, through e-procurement portal on the date and time specified in clause 1.8. The "Financial Proposals" shall remain unopened in the e-procurement portal, until the subsequent public opening following the evaluation of the Technical Proposals.
- 2.22.2 Prior to evaluation of Proposals, the NMCG will determine whether each Proposal is responsive to the requirements of the RFP. The NMCG may, in its sole discretion, reject any Proposal that is not responsive hereunder. A Proposal shall be considered responsive only if:
 - (a) the Technical Proposal is received in the form specified at Appendix-I;
 - (b) it is received by the Proposal Due Date including any extension thereof pursuant to Clause 2.17;

- (c) it is accompanied by the Bid Securing Declaration Form as specified in Clause 2.20.
- (d) it is scanned and digitally signed as stipulated in Clauses 2.13 and 2.16;
- (e) it is accompanied by the Power of Attorney as specified in Clause 2.2.4;
- (f) it contains all the information (complete in all respects) as requested in the RFP;
- (g) it does not contain any condition or qualification; and
- (h) it is not non-responsive in terms hereof.
- 2.22.4 The NMCG reserves the right to reject any Proposal which is non-responsive and no request for alteration, modification, substitution or withdrawal shall be entertained by the NMCG in respect of such Proposals.
- 2.22.5 The NMCG shall subsequently examine and evaluate Proposals in accordance with the Selection Process specified at Clause 1.6 and the criteria set out in Section 3 of this RFP.
- 2.22.6 After the technical evaluation, the NMCG shall prepare a list of shortlisted Bidders in terms of Clause 3.2 for opening of their Financial Proposals. A date, time and venue will be notified to all Bidders for announcing the result of evaluation and opening of Financial Proposals. Before opening of the Financial Proposals, the list of pre-qualified and shortlisted Bidders along with their Technical Score will be read out. The opening of Financial Proposals shall be done in presence of respective representatives of Bidders who choose to be present. The NMCG will not entertain any query or clarification from Bidders who fail to qualify at any stage of the Selection Process. The financial evaluation and final ranking of the Proposals shall be carried out in terms of Clauses 3.3 and 3.4.
- 2.22.7 Bidders are advised that Selection shall be entirely at the discretion of the NMCG. Bidders shall be deemed to have understood and agreed that the NMCG shall not be required to provide any explanation or justification in respect of any aspect of the Selection Process or Selection.
- 2.22.8 Any information contained in the Proposal shall not in any way be construed as binding on the NMCG, its agents, successors or assigns, but shall be binding against the Bidder if the Consultancy is subsequently awarded to it.

2.23 Confidentiality

Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation, and recommendation for the selection of Bidders shall not be disclosed to any person who is not officially concerned with the process or is not a retained professional adviser advising the NMCG in relation to matters arising out of, or concerning the Selection Process. The NMCG shall treat all information, submitted as part of the Proposal, in confidence and shall require all those who have access to such material to treat the same in confidence. The NMCG may not divulge any such information unless it is directed to do so by any

statutory entity that has the power under law to require its disclosure or is to enforce or assert any right or privilege of the statutory entity and/or the NMCG or as may be required by law or in connection with any legal process.

2.24 Clarifications

- 2.24.1 To facilitate evaluation of Proposals, the NMCG may, at its sole discretion, seek clarifications from any Bidder regarding its Proposal. Such clarification(s) shall be provided within the time specified by the NMCG for this purpose. Any request for clarification(s) and all clarification(s) in response thereto shall be in writing.
- 2.24.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications sought under Clause 2.24.1 above within the specified time, its Proposal shall be liable to be rejected. In case the Proposal is not rejected, the NMCG may proceed to evaluate the Proposal by construing the particulars requiring clarification to the best of its understanding, and the Bidder shall be barred from subsequently questioning such interpretation of the NMCG.

E. APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANT

2.25 Negotiations

- 2.25.1 The Selected Bidder may, if necessary, be invited for negotiations. The negotiations shall generally not be for reducing the price of the Proposal, but will be for reconfirming the obligations of the Consultant under this RFP. Issues such as deployment of Key Personnel, understanding of the RFP, methodology and quality of the work plan shall be discussed during negotiations. It may be noted that NMCG reserves the right to ask the selected bidder to justify and demonstrate that the prices proposed in the Financial Proposal are not out of line with the rates being charged by the bidder for other similar assignments.
- 2.25.2 The NMCG will examine the CVs of all Key Personnel and those not found suitable shall be replaced by the Bidder to the satisfaction of the NMCG.

2.26 Substitution of Key Personnel

- 2.26.1 The NMCG will not normally consider any request of the Selected Bidder for substitution of Key Personnel, as the ranking of the Bidder is based on the evaluation of Key Personnel and any change therein may upset the ranking. Substitution will, however, be permitted if the Key Personnel is not available for reasons not attributable to the Consultant such as any incapacity or due to health, death etc, subject to equally or better qualified and experienced personnel being provided to the satisfaction of the NMCG.
- 2.26.2 The NMCG expects all the Key Personnel to be available during implementation of the Agreement. The NMCG will not consider substitution of Key Personnel except for reasons not attributable to the Consultant such as any incapacity, resignation or due to health. Such substitution shall ordinarily be subject to equally or better qualified and experienced personnel being provided to the satisfaction of the NMCG. For substitutions against reasons other than mentioned above, a sum upto 5% (Five per

cent) of the remuneration specified for the original Key Personnel may be deducted from the payments due to the Consultant. In the case of a further substitutions hereunder, such deduction shall be up to 10% (Ten per cent) of the remuneration specified for the original Key Personnel for each substitution. However, NMCG reserves the right to waive off the deduction in fee on the basis of merits of the case.

2.27 Indemnity

The Consultant shall, subject to the provisions of the Agreement, indemnify the NMCG for an amount not exceeding the value of the Agreement for any direct loss or damage that is caused due to any deficiency in services.

2.28 Award of Consultancy

After selection, a Letter of Award (the "LOA") shall be issued, in duplicate, by the NMCG to the Selected Bidder and the Selected Bidder shall, within 3 (three) days of the receipt of the LOA, sign and return the duplicate copy of the LOA in acknowledgement thereof. In the event the duplicate copy of the LOA duly signed by the Selected Bidder is not received by the stipulated date, the NMCG may, unless it consents to extension of time for submission thereof, to take necessary actions as per the Bid Securing Declaration, and the next highest ranking Bidder may be considered.

2.29 Execution of Agreement

After acknowledgement of the LOA as aforesaid by the Selected Bidder, it shall execute the Agreement within the period prescribed in Clause 1.8. The Selected Bidder shall not be entitled to seek any deviation in the Agreement.

2.30 Commencement of assignment

The Consultant shall commence the Services at the Project site within 7 (seven) days of the date of the Agreement, or such other date as may be mutually agreed. If the Consultant fails to either sign the Agreement as specified in Clause 2.29 or commence the assignment as specified herein, the NMCG may invite the second ranked Bidder for negotiations. In such an event, NMCG reserves the right to take necessary actions as per the Bid Securing Declaration.

2.31 Proprietary data

Subject to the provisions of Clause 2.23, all documents and other information provided by the NMCG or submitted by a Bidder to the NMCG shall remain or become the property of the NMCG. Bidders and the Consultant, as the case may be, are to treat all information as strictly confidential. The NMCG will not return any Proposal or any information related thereto. All information collected, analysed, processed or in whatever manner provided by the Consultant to the NMCG in relation to the Consultancy shall be the property of the NMCG.

3. CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION

3.1 Evaluation of Technical Proposals

3.1.1 In the first stage, the Technical Proposal will be evaluated on the basis of Bidder's experience, its understanding of TOR, proposed methodology and Work Plan, and the experience of Key Personnel. Only those Bidders whose Technical Proposals get a score of 70 (seventy) marks or more out of 100 (one hundred) shall qualify for further consideration.

3.1.2 Deleted.

3.1.3 The scoring criteria to be used for evaluation shall be as follows.

S.No.	Description	Requirement	Marks	Max. Marks
1	Relevant experience of	1-3 assignments	200	300
	the Bidder	4-5 assignments	250	
		More than 5 assignments	300	
2	Financial Capacity/	Upto Rs.20 Crore	50	100
	Average Annual	Rs.21-40 Crore	75	
	Turnover	more than Rs.40 Crore	100	
3	Proposed Methodology and Work Plan	Understanding of challenges envisaged in the ToR	100	200
		Methodology adopted to deliver as per scope of work	100	
4	Relevant Experience of	-	-	400
	the Key Personnel			
	1. Team Leader	1-5 assignments	50	100
		6-8 assignments	75	
		More than 8 assignments	100	
	2. Procurement	Upto 5 PPP assignments	35	60
	Specialist-PPP	6-7 PPP assignments	45	
		More than 7 assignments	60	
	3. Procurement	Upto 5 assignments	35	60x3 =
	Specialist (3 nos.)	6-7 assignments	45	180
		More than 7 assignments	60	
	4. Procurement Specialist (Goods &	Experience in GeM procurement	20	60
	Services)	Upto 5 assignments	10	
		6-10 assignments	20	
		11-15 assignments	30	
		More than 15 assignments	40	
	5. Assistant Procurement	ment Not to be evaluated, but Bidder shall submit C		it CVs
	Specialist (3 nos.)	as required		

Notes:

⁽i) Total points scored by each Bidder, after evaluation of Technical Proposal as per the table above will be divided by 10 to assess the total marks for Technical Proposals. For

example, if the Bidders gets a score of say 700, then the marks for Technical Proposal will be 700/10, which is equal to 70 marks.

(ii) NMCG reserves the right to hold interactions with the Key Personnel proposed by the first ranked Bidder (the "Selected Bidder") before award of work and suggest substitute any of them.

3.1.4 (A) Eligible Assignments for Bidder

For the purposes of satisfying the Conditions of Eligibility and for evaluating the Proposals under this RFP, procurement consultancy assignments in Infrastructure sector granted by the Government of India, World Bank, ADB and any other international funding agencies, State PSU's, Central PSU's for providing procurement management support services in accordance with the respective procurement guidelines. The consultant should have deployed at least 3 Procurement Personnel for such assignment and should have received a fee of not less than Rs.1 Crore.

Procurement Personnel mean, experts who are deployed only for the purpose of undertaking procurement related activities prior to entering into the contract.

Infrastructure sectors include power, roads, bridges, ports, airports, railways, urban utility infrastructure (city gas utility, solid waste management), health infrastructure, industrial infrastructure, water/waste water & sanitation (projects in distribution, bulk supply, water treatment plants, sewer networks, sewage treatment plants, common effluent treatment plants, and desalination plants).

3.1.4 (B) Eligible Assignments for Key Personnel

(i) Works:

For the purposes of satisfying the Conditions of Eligibility and for evaluating the Proposals under this RFP, procurement consultancy assignments in Infrastructure sector granted by the Government of India, World Bank, ADB and any other international funding agencies, State PSU's, Central PSU's for providing procurement management support services in accordance with the respective procurement guidelines.

Multiple assignments/projects under same standard bidding document will be considered as one (1) assignment. Activities/assignments undertaken in water/wastewater sector will be counted as 1.5.

(ii) Goods and Services:

For the purposes of satisfying the Conditions of Eligibility and for evaluating the Proposals under this RFP, procurement consultancy assignments in Goods and Services granted by the Government of India, World Bank, ADB and any other international funding agencies, State PSU's, Central PSU's for providing procurement management support services in accordance with the respective procurement guidelines.

Multiple assignments/projects under same standard bidding document will be considered as one (1) assignment.

3.2 Short-listing of Bidders

Bidders ranked as aforesaid, shall be short-listed for financial evaluation in the second stage. However, if the number of such Bidders is less than two, the NMCG may, in its sole discretion, shortlist the Bidder(s) whose technical score is less than 70 (seventy) points; provided that in such an event, the total number of short-listed Bidders shall not exceed two.

3.3 Evaluation of Financial Proposal

- 3.3.1 In the second stage, the financial evaluation will be carried out as per this Clause. Each Financial Proposal will be assigned a financial score (S_F).
- 3.3.2 For financial evaluation, the total cost indicated in the Financial Proposal (BoQ), will be considered.
- 3.3.3 The NMCG will determine whether the Financial Proposals are complete, unqualified and unconditional. The cost indicated in the Financial Proposal shall be deemed as final and reflecting the total cost of services. Omissions, if any, in costing any item shall not entitle the firm to be compensated and the liability to fulfil its obligations as per the TOR within the total quoted price shall be that of the Consultant. The lowest Financial Proposal (F_M) will be given a financial score (S_F) of 100 points. The financial scores of other Proposals will be computed as follows:

$$S_F = 100 \text{ x } F_M/F$$

(F = amount of Financial Proposal)

3.4 Combined and final evaluation

3.4.1 Similar to the ranking of Financial Proposal, for calculating the final Technical Score (S_{T)} proposals with highest technical marks will be given a score 100 marks(T_M). The Technical Score(S_{T)} for other proposals will be computed as follows:

$$S_T = 100 x T / T_M$$

3.4.2 Proposals will finally be ranked according to their combined technical score (S_T) and financial score (S_F) as follows:

$$S = S_T x T_w + S_F x F_w$$

Where S is the combined score, and T_w and F_w are weights assigned to Technical Proposal and Financial Proposal, which shall be 0.70 and 0.30 respectively.

3.4.3 The Selected Bidder shall be the first ranked Bidder (having the highest combined score). The second ranked Bidder shall be kept in reserve and may be invited for negotiations in case the first ranked Bidder withdraws, or fails to comply with the requirements specified in Clauses 2.25, 2.29 and 2.30, as the case may be.

4. FRAUD AND CORRUPT PRACTICES

- 4.1 The Bidders and their respective officers, employees, agents and advisers shall observe the highest standard of ethics during the Selection Process. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this RFP, the NMCG shall reject a Proposal without being liable in any manner whatsoever to the Bidder, if it determines that the Bidder has, directly or indirectly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice (collectively the "Prohibited Practices") in the Selection Process. In such an event, the NMCG shall, without prejudice to its any other rights or remedies, have the right to take necessary actions as per the Bid Securing Declaration.
- 4.2 Without prejudice to the rights of the NMCG under Clause 4.1 hereinabove and the rights and remedies which the NMCG may have under the LOA or the Agreement, if an Bidder or Consultant, as the case may be, is found by the NMCG to have directly or indirectly or through an agent, engaged or indulged in any corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice during the Selection Process, or after the issue of the LOA or the execution of the Agreement, such Bidder or Consultant shall not be eligible to participate in any tender or RFP issued by the NMCG during a period of 2 (two) years from the date such Bidder or Consultant, as the case may be, is found by the NMCG to have directly or through an agent, engaged or indulged in any corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice, as the case may be.
- 4. 3 For the purposes of this Section, the following terms shall have the meaning hereinafter respectively assigned to them:
 - "corrupt practice" means (i) the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly (a) or indirectly, of anything of value to influence the action of any person connected with the Selection Process (for avoidance of doubt, offering of employment to or employing or engaging in any manner whatsoever, directly or indirectly, any official of the NMCG who is or has been associated in any manner, directly or indirectly with the Selection Process or the LOA or has dealt with matters concerning the Agreement or arising therefrom, before or after the execution thereof, at any time prior to the expiry of one year from the date such official resigns or retires from or otherwise ceases to be in the service of the NMCG, shall be deemed to constitute influencing the actions of a person connected with the Selection Process); or (ii) save as provided herein, engaging in any manner whatsoever, whether during the Selection Process or after the issue of the LOA or after the execution of the Agreement, as the case may be, any person in respect of any matter relating to the Project or the LOA or the Agreement, who at any time has been or is a legal, financial or technical Consultant/ adviser of the NMCG in relation to any matter concerning the Project;
 - (b) "fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation or omission of facts or disclosure of incomplete facts, in order to influence the Selection Process;
 - (c) "**coercive practice**" means impairing or harming or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any persons or property to influence any person's participation or action in the Selection Process;

- (d) "undesirable practice" means (i) establishing contact with any person connected with or employed or engaged by the NMCG with the objective of canvassing, lobbying or in any manner influencing or attempting to influence the Selection Process; or (ii) having a Conflict of Interest; and
- (e) "**restrictive practice**" means forming a cartel or arriving at any understanding or arrangement among Bidders with the objective of restricting or manipulating a full and fair competition in the Selection Process.

5. PRE-BID CONFERENCE

- 5.1 Pre-Bid Conference of the Bidders shall be convened at the designated date, time and in the manner as specified in Clause 1.10.
- 5.2 During the course of Pre-Bid Conference, the Bidders will be free to seek clarifications and make suggestions for consideration of the NMCG. The NMCG shall endeavour to provide clarifications and such further information as it may, in its sole discretion, consider appropriate for facilitating a fair, transparent and competitive Selection Process.

6. MISCELLANEOUS

- 6.1 The Selection Process shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of India and the Courts in the State in which the NMCG has its headquarters shall have exclusive jurisdiction over all disputes arising under, pursuant to and/or in connection with the Selection Process.
- 6.2 The NMCG, in its sole discretion and without incurring any obligation or liability, reserves the right, at any time, to:
 - (a) suspend and/or cancel the Selection Process and/or amend and/or supplement the Selection Process or modify the dates or other terms and conditions relating thereto;
 - (b) consult with any Bidder in order to receive clarification or further information;
 - (c) retain any information and/or evidence submitted to the NMCG by, on behalf of and/or in relation to any Bidder; and/or
 - (d) independently verify, disqualify, reject and/or accept any and all submissions or other information and/or evidence submitted by or on behalf of any Bidder.
- 6.3 It shall be deemed that by submitting the Proposal, the Bidder agrees and releases the NMCG, its employees, agents and advisers, irrevocably, unconditionally, fully and finally from any and all liability for claims, losses, damages, costs, expenses or liabilities in any way related to or arising from the exercise of any rights and/or performance of any obligations hereunder, pursuant hereto and/or in connection herewith and waives any and all rights and/or claims it may have in this respect, whether actual or contingent, whether present or future.
- 6.4 All documents and other information supplied by the NMCG or submitted by and Bidder shall remain or become, as the case may be, the property of the NMCG. The NMCG will not return any submissions made hereunder. Bidders are required to treat all such documents and information as strictly confidential.
- 6.5 The NMCG reserves the right to make inquiries with any of the clients listed by the Bidders in their previous experience record.

SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE-1 (See Clause 1.1.4)

Terms of Reference (TOR)

for

PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT SERVICES

Terms of Reference (TOR)

1. BACKGROUND

- 1.1. Government of India has approved the 'Namami Gange Programme' as an integrated approach for effective abatement of pollution in river Ganga. The 'Namami Gange Programme' involves enormous level of development work to be carried out across the identified cities and villages in the eleven States identified under the programme. The 'Namami Gange Programme' is an integrated Conservation Mission, approved as a 'Flagship Programme' by the Union Government in June, 2014 with budget outlay of Rs.20,000 Crore to accomplish the objectives of effective abatement of pollution, conservation and rejuvenation of the national river, Ganga.
- 1.2. National Mission for Clean Ganga (NMCG) is set up as an authority by Government of India through River Ganga (Rejuvenation, Protection and Management) Authorities order, 2016 in exercise of powers given under section 3 of the Environmental Protection Act (EPA) 1986. NMCG is the central level programme implementation body of the National Ganga Council (NGC), which is chaired by Hon'ble Prime Minster. NMCG is supported by States Mission for Clean Ganga (SMCGs), which are also authorities under Section 3 of the EPA, 1986, in 5 basin states on the main stem of River Ganga such as Uttarakhand, Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Jharkhand and West Bengal, for successful implementation of the Namami Gange programme. The main objective of Namami Gange programme is effective abatement of pollution, conservation and rejuvenation of National River Ganga.
- 1.3. As part of the programme, various sewage infrastructure and non-infrastructure works are carried across the Ganga Basin States. Total 341 projects were sanctioned at the total value of Rs.29,972 Cr. In which 147 projects are completed and 159 projects are in different stages of implementation. In procurement, 25 projects are in the tendering stage and 10 projects are in the pre-tendering stage. Besides this, there are new projects are also in the pipeline to be sanctioned soon.
- 1.4. Apart from regular sewage treatment infrastructure, NMCG has taking up many activities in new areas as well such as small river rejuvenation, spring rejuvenation, ground water recharge, biodiversity, institutional support etc. Procurement support for such projects also need to be undertaken, as and when needed
- 1.5. NMCG has applied and pioneered Hybrid Annuity Model (HAM) for the first time in the sewerage sector. The hybrid annuity based PPP model aims at implementation of infrastructure projects under 'Namami Gange' in a financially sustainable, outcome oriented and accountable mode. There have been continuous consultations with stakeholders and now this approach has evolved. It has been endorsed by NITI Aayog too and recommended. Several states are also utilizing our documents to start sewerage projects from state funds. First set of projects under HAM 82 Million Liters per Day (MLD) STPs in Haridwar have been commissioned and 50 MLD STP in Ramana, Varanasi is nearing completion. So far, NMCG has approved 27 packages, under HAM, worth Rs.9,994.00 Cr. In which 20 packages have already been awarded and under

implementation, while 7 packages are under various stages in tendering & pre-tendering process.

2. OBJECTIVES

- 2.1. The proposed Consultancy is to provide support to NMCG/State Programme Management Groups (SPMGs)/Executing Agencies (EAs) to ensure that all Procurement Management aspects including preparation of documents and contract awards are satisfactorily implemented as per the Procurement Guidelines & Procurement Plan.
- 2.2. To improve the institutional capacity of the NMCG/SPMGs to a level, which ensures that Government & other lending organizations' Procurement Procedures/ Guidelines/ Norms are adhered to. Lending Organization's may include multilateral/bilateral financial institutions such as World Bank, JICA etc.
- 2.3. Overall, the Consultant firm will ensure effective, efficient, transparent & accountable procurement, across the entire project, of works, goods and services, including timely and efficient procurement planning and execution, co-ordination with relevant units/Executing Agencies (EAs), procurement monitoring and evaluation, reporting and capacity building.

3. SCOPE OF THE SERVICES

A. Investment Projects

(i) Sewerage Infrastructure

Under Namami Gange, a total of 158 sewerage infrastructure projects have been sanctioned to create / rehabilitate 4,949 MLD treatment capacity in the Ganga basin. In addition, the mission has done conditional assessment and feasibility study of old infrastructure and taken steps to rehabilitate and upgrade, wherever feasible. 70 projects have been completed, creating a treatment capacity of 997 MLD. Sewage treatment capacity in 97 towns along Ganga main stem has increased from 1,304 MLD to 2,279 MLD so far.

(iii) Non-Sewerage

Apart from sewerage works, Namami Gange includes diverse set of interventions needed for rejuvenation such as pollution abatement measures, improving ecology and flow, strengthening people-river connect and scientific studies, mapping, knowledge management and policies. These include:

- Ecological flow, Wetland Mapping and Conservation, Floodplain Protection, Sustainable Agriculture, organic and eco-agriculture, Afforestation and Biodiversity Conservation, Small River Rejuvenation etc.
- People River connect and public participation: River Front Development, Ghats and Crematoria, Community Engagement through activities like cleaning drives, Ganga quest quizzes, games, marathons, Ganga Utsav, rafting expeditions etc.
- Research and Knowledge Management: Water Quality Monitoring, Scientific mapping of different attributes for planning, Urban River Management Plan, research, capacity building and institutional development etc.

As part of the programme, various development works are carried across the Ganga Basin States. Total 347 projects were undertaken about Rs. 30256 Cr. Sanction cost. The no of project undertaken in the program is depict in the following table:

S.No.	Projects Undertaken	No. of Projects
1	Sewerage Infrastructure	158
2	Modular STPs Decentralised Treatment	1
3	Ghats & Crematoria	82
4	River Front Development	1
5	Ghats Cleaning	3
6	River Surface Cleaning	1
7	Ganga Knowledge Centre	7
8	Ganga Monitoring Centre	1
9	Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB)	15
10	District Ganga Committee	1
11	Project Implementation Support/ Research & Study Projects/ Public Relations and Public Outreach	22
12	Bio diversity	9
13	Afforestation	27
14	Composite Ecological Task Force & Ganga Mitra	5
15	Bioremediation	13
16	Construction of IHHL across GPs near Ganga River	1

S.	Description	Sewe	rage	Non-
No.	Description	DBOT	HAM	Sewerage
1.	Assist in compilation of Procurement Plan in	✓	✓	✓
	consultation with all stakeholders such as			
	NMCG/SMCGs/CPCB etc.			
2.	Review and ensure the bidding documents are	✓	✓	✓
	prepared in line with applicable Standard Bidding			
	Document/ World Bank Standard Document.			
	Coordinate with respective approving authorities			
	such as NMCG, World Bank etc. and obtain the			
	comments/observations/NOC.			
3.	Update the Standard Bidding Document (for NGP)	✓	✓	✓
	funded projects), as and when required, to meet the			
	new rules/procedures and are compatible with e-			
	procurement systems			
4.	Review of replies to pre-bid queries and addenda	✓	✓	✓
	shared by SMCGs/EAs and provide inputs from			
	procurement perspective for taking appropriate			
	decision and finalization. Coordinate with			
	respective approving authorities such as NMCG,			

S.	D 1.11	Sewe	rage	Non-		
No.	Description	DBOT	HAM	Sewerage		
	World Bank etc. and obtain the comments/					
	observations/NOC.					
5.	Review of Bid Evaluation Report shared by	✓	✓	✓		
	SMCGs/EAs and provide inputs for taking					
	appropriate decision and finalization, considering					
	applicable policies, procedures/guidelines. Coordinate with respective approving authorities					
	such as NMCG, World Bank etc. and obtain the					
	comments/ observations/NOC.					
6.	Assist in resolving procurement related grievances	√	√	√		
	received by NMCG/SPMGs/EAs/Lending					
	Organisations					
7.	Assist in overall administration of the contracts such	✓	✓	✓		
	as contract monitoring, contract variations, time					
	extensions etc.					
8.	Assist NMCG in submission of procurement related	✓	✓	✓		
	documents such as procurement plan, draft bidding					
	document, response to queries, amendments,					
	request for extension bid due date/bid validity, bid					
	evaluation report and contract amendments etc. to					
	World Bank through STEP portal, for projects funded by World Bank.					
9.	Coordinate with concerned Transaction Advisor for	_	√	_		
).	finalizing the draft bidding documents and ensure	_	·	_		
	that are prepared in line with agreed template/ World					
	Bank Standard Bidding Document					
10.	-	-	✓	=		
	finalization of replies to pre-bid queries, addendam					
	and Bid Evaluation Report in consultation with					
	stakeholders					
11.	Assist in preparation of bidding documents in line	-	✓	-		
	with agreed template/World Bank Standard					
	Template for projects where Transaction Advisor not appointed, including assistance in preparation of					
	replies to queries and addendam in consultation with					
	stakeholders					
12.		-	✓	-		
	financial closure submitted by the concessionaire					
13.		-	✓	-		
	as execution of concession agreement, escrow					
	agreement, substitution agreement, processing fund					
	transfer to project escrow account, review of					
	milestone payment claim/project related					
	expenditure, contract variation, extension of time					
1 /	period etc.					
14.	Coordinate with stakeholders for organising meeting to review of tender progress, signing of	_	•	-		
	meeting to review or tender progress, signing or		<u> </u>			

S.	Description	Sewe	rage	Non-	
No.	Description	DBOT	HAM	Sewerage	
	concession agreement and achievement of				
	conditions precedent of the project				
15.	Assist in preparation of tender documents such as	-	-	✓	
	Request for Quotation, Request for Proposal in				
	consultation with stakeholders, considering				
	applicable policies, procedures/guidelines				
16.	Assist in the procurement process through	-	-	✓	
	appropriate method, as it warrants, including but not				
	limited to, publication of tender notices, organising				
	pre-bid meeting, preparation of replies to queries &				
	addendum and its publication, receipt and opening				
	of bids, safe custody of bid security, monitoring the				
	schedule of procurement, award of work and				
	execution of contract etc.				
17.	Assist in preparation of Technical Evaluation	-	-	✓	
	Report /Bid Evaluation Report/ Combined				
	Technical and Financial Evaluation Report/				
	Contract document, letter of award etc. considering				
	the applicable policies, procedures/ guidelines				

B. Services

The Consultant shall assist NMCG in the procurement of consulting and Non-Consulting services. Consulting Services include engagement of PMC, Transaction Advisor, Project Engineer, Appointment of agencies for IEC activities, DPR Consultant, Audit/Tax/Legal Consultant etc. Non-consulting services include River Surface Cleaning works, appointment of agencies for Annual Maintenance contracts, Hiring Vehicle service, Hiring Manpower agencies etc.

S. No.	Description	Consulting	Non- Consulting
1.	Assist in compilation of Procurement Plan in consultation with all stakeholders of NMCG/SMCGs/CPCB etc.	√	√
2.	Assist in preparation of tender documents such as Request for Quotation, Request for Proposal in consultation with stakeholders, considering applicable policies, procedures/guidelines. Coordinate with respective approving authorities such as NMCG, World Bank etc. and obtain the comments/ observations/NOC.	√	√
3.	Assist in preparation of detailed terms of reference/scope of work in consultation with concerned line department/agency	√	√
4.	Assist in preparation and finalization of replies to pre-bid queries and addenda and provide inputs from procurement perspective for taking appropriate decision and finalization. Coordinate with respective	√	√

S. No.	Description	Consulting	Non- Consulting
	approving authorities such as NMCG, World Bank etc. and obtain the comments/ observations/NOC.		
5.	Assist in the procurement process through appropriate method, as it warrants, including but not limited to, publication of tender notices, organising pre-bid meeting, preparation of replies to queries & addendum and its publication, receipt and opening of bids, safe custody of bid security, monitoring the schedule of procurement, award of work and execution of contract etc.	√	√
6.	Assist in preparation of Technical Evaluation Report /Bid Evaluation Report/ Combined Technical and Financial Evaluation Report/ Contract document/ Minutes of Negotiation, letter of award etc. considering the applicable policies, procedures/ guidelines	√	✓
7.	Assist in resolving procurement related grievances received by NMCG/SPMGs/EAs/Lending Organisations	√	√
8.	Assist in overall administration of the contracts such as contract monitoring, contract variations, time extensions etc.	√	√
9.	Assist NMCG in submission of procurement related documents such as procurement plan, draft bidding document, response to queries, amendments, request for extension bid due date/bid validity, bid evaluation report and contract amendments etc. to World Bank through STEP portal, for projects funded by World Bank.	√	√

C. Goods

The Consultant shall assist NMCG in administration related procurement such as procurement of items required for day-to-day operations i.e. stationaries, pantry items, consumables etc. through Government e-Market Place (GeM). For items not available on GeM, appropriate procurement method within the extant rules/guidelines shall be followed.

S. No.	Description	Procurement through GeM	Procurement through Non-GeM
1.	Assist in compilation of Procurement Plan in consultation with all stakeholders	√	√
2.	Assist in preparation of tender documents such as Request for Quotation, Request for Proposal in consultation with stakeholders, considering applicable policies, procedures/guidelines	-	✓

S. No.	Description	Procurement through GeM	Procurement through Non-GeM
3.	Develop Standard Template of tender document, evaluation reports, letter of award and contract document.	-	✓
4.	Assist in the procurement process through GeM portal/ appropriate method for items outside GeM, as it warrants, including but not limited to, publication of tender notices, organising pre-bid meeting, preparation of replies to queries & addendum and its publication, receipt and opening of bids, safe custody of bid security, monitoring the schedule of procurement, issue of supply order etc.	√	*
5.	Assist in preparation of Technical Evaluation Report /Bid Evaluation Report/ Combined Technical and Financial Evaluation Report, letter of award etc. considering the applicable policies, procedures/ guidelines including updating the evaluation result on GeM portal/e-Procurement portal.	√	✓
6.	Assist the line department/consignee in NMCG to address complaints related to the supply and coordinating for initiating the payment for finally accepted goods.	√	√
7.	Assist in overall administration of the contracts such as contract monitoring, contract variations, time extensions etc.	√	√
8.	Identifying the issues experiencing in GeM portal and suggest way forward to resolve the issues for better and optimum utilization of GeM portal	√	-
9.	Assist NMCG in submission of procurement related documents such as procurement plan, draft bidding document, response to queries, amendments, request for extension bid due date/bid validity, bid evaluation report and contract amendments etc. to World Bank through STEP portal, for projects funded by World Bank.	√	√

D. General:

- 1. Assist NMCG in handling and managing the procurement process carried out through e-procurement portal.
- 2. Maintenance of bid register, contract register, EMD/Performance Security Register.

- 3. Assist NMCG in developing general terms and conditions for projects/activities taken up on pilot basis and develop detailed procurement method/process for scaling up of such projects/activities.
- 4. Review of current policies followed and suggesting suitable practices for better performance & functional improvement.
- 5. Assistance in arbitration, variations, dispute resolution and interpretation of contract.
- 6. Assistance in obtaining legal opinions on contractual issues.

E. Institutional Support:

- 1. Assist NMCG in providing capacity building to SMCGs, Executive Agencies on functional areas of procurement, as per requirement.
- 2. Identifying the gaps in capacities and provide operational advice on guidelines and procedures for procurement.
- 3. Identifying the suitable programs/training sessions for capacity building in procurement and recommend for funding from NMCG, for strengthening the organization.
- 4. Coordinate with all stakeholders for nomination for the capacity building programs.
- 5. Obtaining feedback for effective utilization of the knowledge gained.

4. SUPPORT PROVIDED BY NMCG

- 4.1. NMCG will provide office spaces within the NMCG Office along with work stations, internet access, office equipment and stationery needed for the staff of the Consultants.
- 4.2. The NMCG to provide requisite information to compile procurement plan & procurement manuals.
- 4.3. NMCG will give access to all the required documents, correspondence & any other information associated with the projects as deemed necessary.
- 4.4. Official travel for field visits, duly approved by appropriate authority in NMCG will be paid on reimbursable basis.
- 4.5. The technical information for the terms of reference will be supplied by the respective NMCG/SPMGs/EAs.

5. ASSIGNMENT PERIOD

The assignment would be initially for a period of 3 (three) years. The period could subsequently be extended for a further period of 2 years, on year by year basis, based on satisfactory performance of the Consultant. For such extension beyond the initial contract period, the adjustment in Remuneration rates of Key Personnel will be worked out on the basis of prevailing rates of Consumer Price Index (CPI) for urban labour, published by

MoSPI as on one month prior to the date of extension of contract, compared to the similar rate on the date of contract.

6. TERMS OF PAYMENT

- 6.1. As soon as practicable & not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month during the period of services, the consultant shall submit to the NMCG, the invoice of the amounts payable. The payment shall be monthly according to the deployment of key personnel during the month. The travel cost will be reimbursed as per the provisions of NMCG.
- 6.2. Client shall pay the consultants within 15 days of receipt of such statement with supporting documents of Client's satisfaction.

7. **DELIVERABLES**

The consultant shall require to submit the following reports:

S.No.	Deliverables	Description	Frequency/Timelines
1	Inception Report	Review of existing situation/ contracts & information Detailed work plan & schedule	Within two weeks from Mobilization
2	Monthly Progress Report	Status on ongoing tendering process, ongoing contracts and contract supervision - monitoring	Monthly (by 10 th day of the following month)
3	Quarterly Progress Report	Consolidated Progress Report	Quarterly (by 10 th day of the following month i.e. January, April, July and October)
4	Half Yearly Progress Report	Consolidated Progress Report on implementation issues & constraints.	Half yearly (by 15 th day of the following month i.e. July, January)
5	Final Report	End of assignment	Before one month of expiry

SCHEDULE–2 (See Clause 2.1.3)

AGREEMENT

FOR

PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT SERVICES

CONTENTS

1. General

- 1.1 Definitions and Interpretation
- 1.2 Relation between the Parties
- 1.3 Rights and Obligations
- 1.4 Governing law and jurisdiction
- 1.5 Language
- 1.6 Table of contents and headings
- 1.7 Notices
- 1.8 Location
- 1.9 Authority of Member-in-Charge
- 1.10 Authorised representatives
- 1.11 Taxes and duties

2. Commencement, Completion and Termination of Agreement

- 2.1 Effectiveness of Agreement
- 2.2 Commencement of Services
- 2.3 Termination of Agreement for failure to commence Services
- 2.4 Expiry of Agreement
- 2.5 Entire Agreement
- 2.6 Modification of Agreement
- 2.7 Force Majeure
- 2.8 Suspension of Agreement
- 2.9 Termination of Agreement

3. Obligations of the Consultant

- 3.1 General
- 3.2 Conflict of Interest
- 3.3 Confidentiality
- 3.4 Liability of the Consultant
- 3.5 Accounting, inspection and auditing
- 3.6 Consultant's actions requiring the NMCG's prior approval
- 3.7 Reporting obligations
- 3.8 Documents prepared by the Consultant to be the property of the NMCG
- 3.9 Providing access to the Project Office and Personnel
- 3.10 Accuracy of Documents

4. Consultant's Personnel and Sub-Consultant

- 4.1 General
- 4.2 Deployment of Personnel
- 4.3 Approval of Personnel
- 4.4 Substitution of Key Personnel

- 4.5 Working hours, overtime, leave etc.
- 4.6. Sub-Consultants

5. Obligations of the NMCG

- 5.1 Assistance in clearances etc.
- 5.2 Access to land and property
- 5.3 Change in Applicable Law
- 5.4 Payment

6. Payment to the Consultant

- 6.1 Cost estimates and Agreement Value
- 6.2 Currency of payment
- 6.3 Mode of billing and payment

7. Liquidated damages and penalties

- 7.1 Performance Security
- 7.2 Liquidated Damages
- 7.3 Penalty for deficiency in Services

8. Fairness and Good Faith

- 8.1 Good Faith
- 8.2 Operation of the Agreement

9. Settlement of Disputes

- 9.1 Amicable settlement
- 9.2 Dispute resolution
- 9.3 Conciliation
- 9.4 Arbitration

ANNEXES

- Annex-1: Terms of Reference
- Annex-2: Cost of Services
- Annex-3: Deliverables
- Annex-4: Working Hours and Holidays for Consultant's Personnel
- Annex-5: Payment Schedule
- Annex-6: Reimbursable Expenses
- Annex-7: Letter of Award
- Annex-8: Bank Guarantee for Performance Security

AGREEMENT

	Thi	is	AGREEN	IENT	(hereinafter	r called	l the	"Agree	ement	:") i	is 1	made	on	the
			day of	the mo	nth of	2	0, ł	oetween,	on t	he o	ne l	nand,	Nati	onal
Missio	n	for	Clean	Ganga	(herein	after '	'NMC	G") an	id, c	n 1	the	othe	r h	and,
include their respective successors and permitted assigns).														

WHEREAS

- (A) The NMCG vide its Request for Proposal for seeking Procurement Management Support Services (hereinafter called the "Consultancy");
- (B) the Consultant submitted its proposals for the aforesaid work, whereby the Consultant represented to the NMCG that it had the required professional skills, and in the said proposals the Consultant also agreed to provide the Services to the NMCG on the terms and conditions as set forth in the RFP and this Agreement; and
- (C) the NMCG, on acceptance of the aforesaid proposals of the Consultant, awarded the Consultancy to the Consultant vide its Letter of Award dated (the "LOA"); and
- (D) in pursuance of the LOA, the parties have agreed to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. GENERAL

1.1 Definitions and Interpretation

- 1.1.1 The words and expressions beginning with capital letters and defined in this Agreement shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the meaning hereinafter respectively assigned to them:
 - (a) "Agreement" means this Agreement, together with all the Annexes;
 - (b) "Agreement Value" shall have the meaning set forth in Clause 6.1.2;
 - (c) "Applicable Laws" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in India as they may be issued and in force from time to time;
 - (d) "Confidential Information" shall have the meaning set forth in Clause 3.3;
 - (e) "Conflict of Interest" shall have the meaning set forth in Clause 3.2 read with the provisions of RFP;
 - (f) "**Dispute**" shall have the meaning set forth in Clause 9.2.1;
 - (g) "Effective Date" means the date on which this Agreement comes into force and effect pursuant to Clause 2.1;

- (h) "Government" means the Government of;
- (i) "INR, Re. or Rs." means Indian Rupees;
- (j) "Member", in case the Consultant consists of a joint venture or consortium of more than one entity, means any of these entities, and "Members" means all of these entities;
- (k) "Party" means the NMCG or the Consultant, as the case may be, and Parties means both of them;
- (l) "Personnel" means persons hired by the Consultant as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof;
- (m) "RFP" means the Request for Proposal document in response to which the Consultant's proposal for providing Services was accepted;
- (n) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, as described in the Terms of Reference hereto;
- (o) "Third Party" means any person or entity other than the Government, the NMCG and the Consultant.

All terms and words not defined herein shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the meaning assigned to them in the RFP.

- 1.1.2 The following documents along with all addenda issued thereto shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as integral parts of this Agreement and in case of any contradiction between or among them the priority in which a document would prevail over another would be as laid down below beginning from the highest priority to the lowest priority:
 - (a) Agreement;
 - (b) Annexes of Agreement;
 - (c) Letter of Award; and
 - (d) RFP

1.2 Relation between the Parties

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as establishing a relation of master and servant or of agent and principal as between the NMCG and the Consultant. The Consultant shall, subject to this Agreement, have complete charge of Personnel performing the Services and shall be fully responsible for the Services performed by them or on their behalf hereunder.

1.3 Rights and obligations

The mutual rights and obligations of the NMCG and the Consultant shall be as set forth in the Agreement, in particular:

(a) the Consultant shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement; and

(b) the NMCG shall make payments to the Consultant in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement.

1.4 Governing law and jurisdiction

This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with and governed by the laws of India, and the courts in the State in which the NMCG has its headquarters shall have exclusive jurisdiction over matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

1.5 Language

All notices required to be given by one Party to the other Party and all other communications, documentation and proceedings which are in any way relevant to this Agreement shall be in writing and in English language.

1.6 Table of contents and headings

The table of contents, headings or sub-headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be used in, and shall not affect, the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

1.7 Notices

Any notice or other communication to be given by any Party to the other Party under or in connection with the matters contemplated by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall:

- (a) in the case of the Consultant, be given by e-mail and by letter delivered by hand to the address given and marked for attention of the Consultant's Representative set out below in Clause 1.10 or to such other person as the Consultant may from time to time designate by notice to the NMCG; provided that notices or other communications to be given to an address outside the city specified in Subclause (b) below may, if they are subsequently confirmed by sending a copy thereof by registered acknowledgement due, air mail or by courier, be sent by e-mail to the number as the Consultant may from time to time specify by notice to the NMCG;
- (b) in the case of the NMCG, be given by e-mail and by letter delivered by hand and be addressed to the NMCG with a copy delivered to the NMCG Representative set out below in Clause 1.10 or to such other person as the NMCG may from time to time designate by notice to the Consultant; provided that if the Consultant does not have an office in the same city as the NMCG's office, it may send such notice by e-mail and by registered acknowledgement due, air mail or by courier; and
- (c) any notice or communication by a Party to the other Party, given in accordance herewith, shall be deemed to have been delivered when in the normal course of post it ought to have been delivered and in all other cases, it shall be deemed to have been delivered on the actual date and time of delivery; provided that in the case of e-mail, it shall be deemed to have been delivered on the working days following the date of its delivery.

1.8 Location

The Services shall be performed at the office of NMCG in accordance with the provisions of RFP and at such locations as are incidental thereto, including the offices of the Consultant.

1.9 Authority of Member-in-charge

In case the Consultant consists of a consortium of more than one entity, the Parties agree that the Lead Member shall act on behalf of the Members in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the NMCG under this Agreement, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the NMCG.

1.10 Authorised Representatives

- 1.10.1 Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed, under this Agreement by the NMCG or the Consultant, as the case may be, may be taken or executed by the officials specified in this Clause.

1.11 Taxes and duties

Email:

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, the Consultant shall pay all such taxes, duties, fees and other impositions as may be levied under the Applicable Laws and the NMCG shall perform such duties in regard to the deduction of such taxes as may be lawfully imposed on it.

2. COMMENCEMENT, COMPLETION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

2.1 Effectiveness of Agreement

This Agreement shall come into force and effect on the date of this Agreement (the "Effective Date").

2.2 Commencement of Services

The Consultant shall commence the Services within a period of 7 (seven) days from the Effective Date, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.

2.3 Termination of Agreement for failure to commence Services

If the Consultant does not commence the Services within the period specified in Clause 2.2 above, the NMCG may, by not less than 2 (two) weeks' notice to the Consultant, declare this Agreement to be null and void, and in the event of such a declaration, the Performance Security of the Consultant shall stand forfeited.

2.4 Expiry of Agreement

Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clauses 2.3 or 2.9 hereof, this Agreement shall, unless extended by the Parties by mutual consent, expire upon the earlier of (i) expiry of a period of 90 (ninety) days after the delivery of the final deliverable to the NMCG; or (ii) the expiry of 3 (three) years from the Effective Date. Upon Termination, the NMCG shall make payments of all amounts due to the Consultant hereunder.

2.5 Entire Agreement

- 2.5.1 This Agreement and the Annexes together constitute a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the Parties on the subject hereof, and no amendment or modification hereto shall be valid and effective unless such modification or amendment is agreed to in writing by the Parties and duly executed by persons especially empowered in this behalf by the respective Parties. All prior written or oral understandings, offers or other communications of every kind pertaining to this Agreement are abrogated and withdrawn; provided, however, that the obligations of the Consultant arising out of the provisions of the RFP shall continue to subsist and shall be deemed to form part of this Agreement.
- 2.5.2 Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions of Clause 2.5.1, on matters not covered by this Agreement, the provisions of RFP shall apply.

2.6 Modification of Agreement

Modification of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including any modification of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. Pursuant to Clauses 6.1.3 and 8.2 hereof, however, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification made by the other Party.

2.7 Force Majeure

2.7.1 Definition

- (a) For the purposes of this Agreement, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party, and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations hereunder impossible or so impractical as reasonably to be considered impossible in the circumstances, and includes, but is not limited to, war, riots, civil disorder, earthquake, pandemic, fire, explosion, storm, flood or other adverse weather conditions, strikes, lockouts or other industrial action (except where such strikes, lockouts or other industrial action are within the power of the Party invoking Force Majeure to prevent), confiscation or any other action by government agencies.
- (b) Force Majeure shall not include (i) any event which is caused by the negligence or intentional action of a Party or agents or employees, nor (ii) any event which a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected to both (A) take into account at the time of the conclusion of this Agreement, and (B) avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations hereunder.
- (c) Force Majeure shall not include insufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required hereunder.

2.7.2 No breach of Agreement

The failure of a Party to fulfil any of its obligations hereunder shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Agreement insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2.7.3 Measures to be taken

- (a) A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall take all reasonable measures to remove such Party's inability to fulfil its obligations hereunder with a minimum of delay.
- (b) A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify the other Party of such event as soon as possible, and in any event not later than 14 (fourteen) days following the occurrence of such event, providing evidence of the nature and cause of such event, and shall similarly give notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
- (c) The Parties shall take all reasonable measures to minimise the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.

2.7.4 Extension of time

Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Agreement, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

2.7.5 Payments

During the period of its inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant shall be entitled to be reimbursed for Additional Costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by it during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Services after the end of such period.

2.7.6 Consultation

Not later than 30 (thirty) days after the Consultant has, as the result of an event of Force Majeure, become unable to perform a material portion of the Services, the Parties shall consult with each other with a view to agreeing on appropriate measures to be taken in the circumstances.

2.8 Suspension of Agreement

The NMCG may, by written notice of suspension to the Consultant, suspend all payments to the Consultant hereunder if the Consultant shall be in breach of this Agreement or shall fail to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement, including the carrying out of the Services; provided that such notice of suspension (i) shall specify the nature of the breach or failure, and (ii) shall provide an opportunity to the Consultant to remedy such breach or failure within a period not exceeding 30 (thirty) days after receipt by the Consultant of such notice of suspension.

2.9 Termination of Agreement

2.9.1 By the NMCG

The NMCG may, by not less than 30 (thirty) days' written notice of termination to the Consultant, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in this Clause, terminate this Agreement if:

- (a) the Consultant fails to remedy any breach hereof or any failure in the performance of its obligations hereunder, as specified in a notice of suspension pursuant to Clause 2.8 hereinabove, within 30 (thirty) days of receipt of such notice of suspension or within such further period as the NMCG may have subsequently granted in writing;
- (b) the Consultant becomes insolvent or bankrupt or enters into any agreement with its creditors for relief of debt or take advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors or goes into liquidation or receivership whether compulsory or voluntary;
- (c) the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to Clause 9 hereof;
- (d) the Consultant submits to the NMCG a statement which has a material effect on the rights, obligations or interests of the NMCG and which the Consultant knows to be false;

- (e) any document, information, data or statement submitted by the Consultant in its Proposals, based on which the Consultant was considered eligible or successful, is found to be false, incorrect or misleading;
- (f) as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than 60 (sixty) days; or
- (g) the NMCG, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Agreement.

2.9.2 By the Consultant

The Consultant may, by not less than 30 (thirty) days' written notice to the NMCG, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in this Clause, terminate this Agreement if:

- (a) the NMCG fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement and not subject to dispute pursuant to Clause 9 hereof within 45 (forty five) days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue;
- (b) the NMCG is in material breach of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement and has not remedied the same within 45 (forty five) days (or such longer period as the Consultant may have subsequently granted in writing) following the receipt by the NMCG of the Consultant's notice specifying such breach;
- (c) as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than 60 (sixty) days; or
- (d) the NMCG fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to Clause 9 hereof.

2.9.3 Cessation of rights and obligations

Upon termination of this Agreement pursuant to Clauses 2.3 or 2.9 hereof, or upon expiration of this Agreement pursuant to Clause 2.4 hereof, all rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall cease, except (i) such rights and obligations as may have accrued on the date of termination or expiration, or which expressly survive such Termination; (ii) the obligation of confidentiality set forth in Clause 3.3 hereof; (iii) the Consultant's obligation to permit inspection, copying and auditing of such of its accounts and records set forth in Clause 3.6, as relate to the Consultant's Services provided under this Agreement; and (iv) any right or remedy which a Party may have under this Agreement or the Applicable Law.

2.9.4 Cessation of Services

Upon termination of this Agreement by notice of either Party to the other pursuant to Clauses 2.9.1 or 2.9.2 hereof, the Consultant shall, immediately upon dispatch or receipt of such notice, take all necessary steps to bring the Services to a close in a prompt and orderly manner and shall make every reasonable effort to keep expenditures for this purpose to a minimum.

2.9.5 Payment upon Termination

Upon termination of this Agreement pursuant to Clauses 2.9.1 or 2.9.2 hereof, the NMCG shall make the following payments to the Consultant (after offsetting against these payments any amount that may be due from the Consultant to the NMCG):

- (i) remuneration pursuant to Clause 6 hereof for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the date of termination;
- (ii) reimbursable expenditures pursuant to Clause 6 hereof for expenditures actually incurred prior to the date of termination; and
- (iii) except in the case of termination pursuant to sub-clauses (a) through (e) of Clause 2.9.1 hereof, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incidental to the prompt and orderly termination of the Agreement including the cost of the return travel of the Consultant's personnel.

2.9.6 Disputes about Events of Termination

If either Party disputes whether an event specified in Clause 2.9.1 or in Clause 2.9.2 hereof has occurred, such Party may, within 30 (thirty) days after receipt of notice of termination from the other Party, refer the matter to arbitration pursuant to Clause 9 hereof, and this Agreement shall not be terminated on account of such event except in accordance with the terms of any resulting arbitral award.

3. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT

3.1 General

3.1.1 Standards of Performance

The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out its obligations hereunder with all due diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional techniques and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate advanced technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Agreement or to the Services, as a faithful adviser to the NMCG, and shall at all times support and safeguard the NMCG's legitimate interests in any dealings with Third Parties.

3.1.2 Terms of Reference

The scope of services to be performed by the Consultant is specified in the Terms of Reference (the "TOR") at Annex-1 of this Agreement. The Consultant shall provide the Deliverables specified therein in conformity with the time schedule stated therein.

3.1.3 Applicable Laws

The Consultant shall perform the Services in accordance with the Applicable Laws and shall take all practicable steps to ensure that the Personnel and agents of the Consultant, comply with the Applicable Laws.

3.2 Conflict of Interest

- 3.2.1 The Consultant shall not have a Conflict of Interest and any breach hereof shall constitute a breach of the Agreement.
- 3.2.2 Consultant and Affiliates not to be otherwise interested in the Project

The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Agreement and after its termination, the Consultant or any Associate thereof and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works, services, loans or equity for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services and any breach of this obligation shall amount to a Conflict of Interest; provided that the restriction herein shall not apply after a period of five years from the completion of this assignment or to consulting assignments granted by banks/ lenders at any time; provided further that this restriction shall not apply to consultancy/ advisory services provided to the NMCG in continuation of this Consultancy or to any subsequent consultancy/ advisory services provided to the NMCG in accordance with the rules of the NMCG. For the avoidance of doubt, an entity affiliated with the Consultant shall include a partner in the Consultant's firm or a person who holds more than 5% (five per cent) of the subscribed and paid up share capital of the Consultant, as the case may be, and any Associate thereof.

3.2.3 Prohibition of conflicting activities

Neither the Consultant nor its Personnel of either of them shall engage, either directly or indirectly, in any of the following activities:

- (a) during the term of this Agreement, any business or professional activities which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Agreement;
- (b) after the termination of this Agreement, such other activities as may be specified in the Agreement; or
- (c) at any time, such other activities as have been specified in the RFP as Conflict of Interest.
- 3.2.4 Consultant not to benefit from commissions, discounts, etc.

The remuneration of the Consultant pursuant to Clause 6 hereof shall constitute the Consultant's sole remuneration in connection with this Agreement or the Services and the Consultant shall not accept for its own benefit any trade commission, discount or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Agreement or to the Services or in the discharge of its obligations hereunder, and the Consultant shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Personnel and agents of either of them, similarly shall not receive any such additional remuneration.

3.2.5 The Consultant and its Personnel shall observe the highest standards of ethics and shall not have engaged in and shall not hereafter engage in any corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice (collectively the "Prohibited Practices"). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the NMCG shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement forthwith by a communication in writing to the Consultant, without being liable in any manner whatsoever to the Consultant, if it determines that the Consultant has, directly or

indirectly or through an agent, engaged in any Prohibited Practices in the Selection Process or before or after entering into of this Agreement. In such an event, the NMCG shall forfeit and appropriate the performance security, if any, as mutually agreed genuine pre-estimated compensation and damages payable to the NMCG towards, *inter alia*, the time, cost and effort of the NMCG, without prejudice to the NMCG's any other rights or remedy hereunder or in law.

- 3.2.6 Without prejudice to the rights of the NMCG under Clause 3.2.5 above and the other rights and remedies which the NMCG may have under this Agreement, if the Consultant is found by the NMCG to have directly or indirectly or through an agent, engaged or indulged in any Prohibited Practices, during the Selection Process or before or after the execution of this Agreement, the Consultant shall not be eligible to participate in any tender or RFP issued during a period of 2 (two) years from the date the Consultant is found by the NMCG to have directly or indirectly or through an agent, engaged or indulged in any Prohibited Practices.
- 3.2.7 For the purposes of Clauses 3.2.5 and 3.2.6, the following terms shall have the meaning hereinafter respectively assigned to them:
 - "corrupt practice" means (i) the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, (a) directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence the actions of any person connected with the Selection Process (for removal of doubt, offering of employment or employing or engaging in any manner whatsoever, directly or indirectly, any official of the NMCG who is or has been associated in any manner, directly or indirectly with Selection Process or LOA or dealing with matters concerning the Agreement before or after the execution thereof, at any time prior to the expiry of one year from the date such official resigns or retires from or otherwise ceases to be in the service of the NMCG, shall be deemed to constitute influencing the actions of a person connected with the Selection Process); or (ii) engaging in any manner whatsoever, whether during the Selection Process or after the issue of LOA or after the execution of the Agreement, as the case may be, any person in respect of any matter relating to the Project or the LOA or the Agreement, who at any time has been or is a legal, financial or technical adviser the NMCG in relation to any matter concerning the Project;
 - (b) "fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation or omission of facts or suppression of facts or disclosure of incomplete facts, in order to influence the Selection Process;
 - (c) "coercive practice" means impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any person or property to influence any person's participation or action in the Selection Process or the exercise of its rights or performance of its obligations by the NMCG under this Agreement;
 - (d) "undesirable practice" means (i) establishing contact with any person connected with or employed or engaged by the NMCG with the objective of canvassing, lobbying or in any manner influencing or attempting to influence the Selection Process; or (ii) having a Conflict of Interest; and

(e) "restrictive practice" means forming a cartel or arriving at any understanding or arrangement among Bidders with the objective of restricting or manipulating a full and fair competition in the Selection Process.

3.3 Confidentiality

The Consultant, its Personnel of either of them shall not, either during the term or within two years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement disclose any proprietary information, including information relating to reports, data, drawings, design software or other material, whether written or oral, in electronic or magnetic format, and the contents thereof; and any reports, digests or summaries created or derived from any of the foregoing that is provided by the NMCG to the Consultant, its Personnel; any information provided by or relating to the NMCG, its technology, technical processes, business affairs or finances or any information relating to the NMCG's employees, officers or other professionals or suppliers, customers, or contractors of the NMCG; and any other information which the Consultant is under an obligation to keep confidential in relation to the Project, the Services or this Agreement ("Confidential Information"), without the prior written consent of the NMCG.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the Consultant, and the Personnel of either of them may disclose Confidential Information to the extent that such Confidential Information:

- (i) was in the public domain prior to its delivery to the Consultant, and the Personnel of either of them or becomes a part of the public knowledge from a source other than the Consultant, and the Personnel of either of them;
- (ii) was obtained from a third party with no known duty to maintain its confidentiality;
- (iii) is required to be disclosed by Applicable Laws or judicial or administrative or arbitral process or by any governmental instrumentalities, provided that for any such disclosure, the Consultant, and the Personnel of either of them shall give the NMCG, prompt written notice, and use reasonable efforts to ensure that such disclosure is accorded confidential treatment; and
- (iv) is provided to the professional advisers, agents, auditors or representatives of the Consultant or Personnel of either of them, as is reasonable under the circumstances; provided, however, that the Consultant or Personnel of either of them, as the case may be, shall require their professional advisers, agents, auditors or its representatives, to undertake in writing to keep such Confidential Information, confidential and shall use its best efforts to ensure compliance with such undertaking.

3.4 Liability of the Consultant

- 3.4.1 The Consultant's liability under this Agreement shall be determined by the Applicable Laws and the provisions hereof.
- 3.4.2 The Consultant shall, subject to the limitation specified in Clause 3.4.3, be liable to the NMCG for any direct loss or damage accrued or likely to accrue due to deficiency in Services rendered by it.

- 3.4.3 The Parties hereto agree that in case of negligence or wilful misconduct on the part of the Consultant or on the part of any person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services, the Consultant, with respect to damage caused to the NMCG's property, shall not be liable to the NMCG:
 - (i) for any indirect or consequential loss or damage; and
 - (ii) for any direct loss or damage that exceeds (a) the Agreement Value set forth in Clause 6.1.2 of this Agreement, or (b) the proceeds the Consultant may be entitled to receive from any insurance maintained by the Consultant to cover such a liability in accordance with this Clause, whichever of (a) or (b) is higher.
- 3.4.4 This limitation of liability specified in Clause 3.4.3 shall not affect the Consultant's liability, if any, for damage to Third Parties caused by the Consultant or any person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services subject, however, to a limit equal to the Agreement Value.

3.5 Accounting, inspection and auditing

The Consultant shall:

- (a) keep accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Services provided under this Agreement, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles and in such form and detail as will clearly identify all relevant time charges and cost, and the basis thereof (including the basis of the Consultant's costs and charges); and
- (b) permit the NMCG or its designated representative periodically, and up to one year from the expiration or termination of this Agreement, to inspect the same and make copies thereof as well as to have them audited by auditors appointed by the NMCG.

3.6 Consultant's actions requiring the NMCG's prior approval

The Consultant shall obtain the NMCG's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:

- (a) appointing such members of the Key Personnel as are not listed in Annex–2.
- (b) any other action that is specified in this Agreement.

3.7 Reporting obligations

The Consultant shall submit to the NMCG the reports and documents specified in the Agreement, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth therein.

3.8 Documents prepared by the Consultant to be property of the NMCG

3.8.1 All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports and other documents (collectively referred to as "Consultancy Documents") prepared by the Consultant (or any Third Party) in performing the Services shall become and remain the property of the NMCG, and all intellectual property rights in such Consultancy Documents shall vest with the

NMCG. Any Consultancy Document, of which the ownership or the intellectual property rights do not vest with the NMCG under law, shall automatically stand assigned to the NMCG as and when such Consultancy Document is created and the Consultant agrees to execute all papers and to perform such other acts as the NMCG may deem necessary to secure its rights herein assigned by the Consultant.

- 3.8.2 The Consultant shall, not later than termination or expiration of this Agreement, deliver all Consultancy Documents to the NMCG, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Consultant may retain a copy of such Consultancy Documents. The Consultant, or a Third Party shall not use these Consultancy Documents for purposes unrelated to this Agreement without the prior written approval of the NMCG.
- 3.8.3 The Consultant shall hold the NMCG harmless and indemnified for any losses, claims, damages, expenses (including all legal expenses), awards, penalties or injuries (collectively referred to as 'Claims') which may arise from or due to any unauthorised use of such Consultancy Documents, or due to any breach or failure on part of the Consultant or a Third Party to perform any of its duties or obligations in relation to securing the aforementioned rights of the NMCG.

3.9 Providing access to Project Office and Personnel

The Consultant shall ensure that the NMCG, and officials of the NMCG are provided unrestricted access to the Project Office and to all Personnel during office hours. The NMCG's official, who has been authorised by the NMCG in this behalf, shall have the right to inspect the Services in progress, interact with Personnel of the Consultant and verify the records relating to the Services for his satisfaction.

3.10. Accuracy of Documents

The Consultant shall be responsible for accuracy of the data collected by it directly or procured from other agencies/authorities, the designs, drawings, estimates and all other details prepared by it as part of these services. Subject to the provisions of Clause 3.4, it shall indemnify the NMCG against any inaccuracy in its work which might surface during implementation of the Project, if such inaccuracy is the result of any negligence or inadequate due diligence on part of the Consultant or arises out of its failure to conform to good industry practice. The Consultant shall also be responsible for promptly correcting, at its own cost and risk, the drawings including any re-survey / investigations.

4. Consultant's Personnel and Sub-Consultants

4.1 General

The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Personnel as may be required to carry out the Services.

4.2 Deployment of Personnel

4.2.1 The designations, names and the estimated periods of engagement in carrying out the Services by each of the Consultant's Personnel are described in Annex-2 of this Agreement. The estimate of Personnel costs and man-month rates are specified in Annex-2 of this Agreement.

4.2.2 If additional work is required beyond the scope of the Services specified in the Terms of Reference, the estimated periods of engagement of Personnel, set forth in the Annexes of the Agreement may be increased by agreement in writing between the NMCG and the Consultant, provided that any such increase shall not, except as otherwise agreed, cause payments under this Agreement to exceed the Agreement Value set forth in Clause 6.1.2.

4.3 Approval of Personnel

- 4.3.1 The Key Personnel listed in Annex-2 of the Agreement are hereby approved by the NMCG. No other Key Personnel shall be engaged without prior approval of the NMCG.
- 4.3.2 If the Consultant hereafter proposes to engage any person as Key Personnel, it shall submit to the NMCG its proposal along with a CV of such person in the form provided at Appendix–I (Form-12) of the RFP. The NMCG may approve or reject such proposal within 14 (fourteen) days of receipt thereof. In case the proposal is rejected, the Consultant may propose an alternative person for the NMCG's consideration. In the event the NMCG does not reject a proposal within 14 (fourteen) days of the date of receipt thereof under this Clause 4.3, it shall be deemed to have been approved by the NMCG.

4.4 Substitution of Key Personnel

The NMCG expects all the Key Personnel to be available during implementation of the Agreement. The NMCG will not consider substitution of Key Personnel except for reasons not attributable to the Consultant such as any incapacity, resignation or due to health. Such substitution shall ordinarily be subject to equally or better qualified and experienced personnel being provided to the satisfaction of the NMCG. For substitutions against reasons other than mentioned above, a sum of upto 5% (Five per cent) of the remuneration specified for the original Key Personnel may be deducted from the payments due to the Consultant. In the case of a further substitutions hereunder, such deduction shall be 10% (Ten per cent) of the remuneration specified for the original Key Personnel for each substitution. However, NMCG reserves the right to waive off the deduction in fee on the basis of merits of the case.

4.5 Working hours, overtime, leave, etc.

The Personnel shall not be entitled to be paid for overtime nor to take paid sick leave or vacation leave except as specified in the Agreement, and the Consultant's remuneration shall be deemed to cover these items. All leave to be allowed to the Personnel is excluded from the man-month of service set forth in Annex-2. Any taking of leave by any Personnel for a period exceeding 7 (seven) days shall be subject to the prior approval of the NMCG, and the Consultant shall ensure that any absence on leave will not delay the progress and quality of the Services.

4.6 Sub-Consultants

The Consultant shall not assign, transfer, pledge or sub-contract, the performance or services or any part thereof to any other. In the event of the Consultant contravening this condition, the Contract is liable to be terminated and to get the balance work or services under the contract executed at the risk and cost of the Consultant. The

Consultant shall be liable for any loss or damage which the NMCG may sustain as a consequence or arising out of such replacing of the contract.

5. OBLIGATIONS OF THE NMCG

5.1 Assistance in clearances etc.

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, the NMCG shall make best efforts to ensure that the Government shall:

- (a) provide the Consultant, and Personnel with necessary support and such other documents as may be necessary to enable the Consultant, or Personnel to perform the Services; and
- (b) issue to officials, agents and representatives of the Government all such instructions as may be necessary or appropriate for the prompt and effective implementation of the Services.

5.2 Access to land and property

The NMCG warrants that the Consultant shall have, free of charge, unimpeded access to the site of the project in respect of which access is required for the performance of Services; provided that if such access shall not be made available to the Consultant as and when so required, the Parties shall agree on (i) the time extension, as may be appropriate, for the performance of Services, and (ii) the additional payments, if any, to be made to the Consultant as a result thereof pursuant to Clause 6.1.3.

5.3 Change in Applicable Law

If, after the date of this Agreement, there is any change in the Applicable Laws with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost or reimbursable expenses incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, by an amount exceeding 2% (two per cent) of the Agreement Value specified in Clause 6.1.2, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under this Agreement shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties hereto, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the aforesaid Agreement Value.

5.4 Payment

In consideration of the Services performed by the Consultant under this Agreement, the NMCG shall make to the Consultant such payments and in such manner as is provided in Clause 6 of this Agreement.

6. PAYMENT TO THE CONSULTANT

6.1 Cost estimates and Agreement Value

6.1.1 The cost of the Services payable to the Consultant is set forth in Annex-2 of the Agreement.

- 6.1.3 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Clause 6.1.2, if pursuant to the provisions of Clauses 2.6 and 2.7, the Parties agree that additional payments shall be made to the Consultant in order to cover any additional expenditures not envisaged in the cost estimates referred to in Clause 6.1.1 above, the Agreement Value set forth in Clause 6.1.2 above shall be increased by the amount or amounts, as the case may be, of any such additional payments.

6.2 Currency of payment

All payments shall be made in Indian Rupees. The Consultant shall be free to convert Rupees into any foreign currency as per Applicable Laws.

6.3 Mode of billing and payment

Billing and payments in respect of the Services shall be made as follows:-

- (a) Deleted
- (b) The Consultant shall be paid for its services as per the Payment Schedule at Annex-5 of this Agreement:
- (c) The NMCG shall cause the payment due to the Consultant to be made within 30 (thirty) days after the receipt by the NMCG of duly completed bills with necessary particulars (the "**Due Date**"). Interest at the rate of 8% (eight per cent) per annum shall become payable as from the Due Date on any amount due by, but not paid on or before, such Due Date.
- (d) The final payment under this Clause shall be made only after the final report and a final statement, identified as such, shall have been submitted by the Consultant and approved as satisfactory by the NMCG. The Services shall be deemed completed and finally accepted by the NMCG and the final deliverable shall be deemed approved by the NMCG as satisfactory upon expiry of 90 (ninety) days after receipt of the final deliverable by the NMCG unless the NMCG, within such 90 (ninety) day period, gives written notice to the Consultant specifying in detail, the deficiencies in the Services. The Consultant shall thereupon promptly make any necessary corrections and/or additions, and upon completion of such corrections or additions, the foregoing process shall be repeated. The NMCG shall make the final payment upon acceptance or deemed acceptance of the final deliverable by the NMCG.
- (e) Any amount which the NMCG has paid or caused to be paid in excess of the amounts actually payable in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement shall be reimbursed by the Consultant to the NMCG within 30 (thirty) days after receipt by the Consultant of notice thereof. Any such claim by the NMCG for reimbursement must be made within 1 (one) year after receipt by the NMCG of a final report in accordance with Clause 6.3 (d). Any delay by the Consultant in reimbursement by the due date shall attract simple interest @ 10% (ten per cent) per annum.

(f) All payments under this Agreement shall be made to the account of the Consultant as may be notified to the NMCG by the Consultant.

7. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND PENALTIES

7.1 Performance Security

- 7.1.1 For the purposes of this Agreement, performance security shall be deemed to be an amount equal to 3% (three percent) of the Agreement Value (the "Performance Security"); provided, however, that the Consultant shall be required to provide a Performance Security in the form of a bank guarantee substantially in the form specified at Annex-8 of this Agreement.
- 7.1.2 For the avoidance of doubt, the parties hereto expressly agree that in addition to appropriation of the amounts withheld hereunder, in the event of any default requiring the appropriation of further amounts comprising the Performance Security, the NMCG may make deductions from any subsequent payments due and payable to the Consultant hereunder, as if it is appropriating the Performance Security in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

7.2 Liquidated Damages

7.2.1 Liquidated Damages for error/variation

In case any error or variation is detected in the reports submitted by the Consultant and such error or variation is the result of negligence or lack of due diligence on the part of the Consultant, the consequential damages thereof shall be quantified by the NMCG in a reasonable manner and recovered from the Consultant by way of deemed liquidated damages, subject to a maximum of 20% (twenty per cent) of the Agreement Value.

7.2.2 Liquidated Damages for delay

In case of delay in completion of Services, liquidated damages not exceeding an amount equal to 0.1% (zero point one per cent) of the Agreement Value per day, subject to a maximum of 10% (ten per cent) of the Agreement Value will be imposed and shall be recovered by appropriation from the Performance Security or otherwise. However, in case of delay due to reasons beyond the control of the Consultant, suitable extension of time shall be granted.

7.2.3 Encashment and appropriation of Performance Security

The NMCG shall have the right to invoke and appropriate the proceeds of the Performance Security, in whole or in part, without notice to the Consultant in the event of breach of this Agreement or for recovery of liquidated damages specified in this Clause 7.2.

7.3 Penalty for deficiency in Services

In addition to the liquidated damages not amounting to penalty, as specified in Clause 7.2, warning may be issued to the Consultant for minor deficiencies on its part. In the case of significant deficiencies in Services causing adverse effect on the Project or on

the reputation of the NMCG, other penal action including debarring for a specified period may also be initiated as per policy of the NMCG.

8. FAIRNESS AND GOOD FAITH

8.1 Good Faith

The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Agreement and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realisation of the objectives of this Agreement.

8.2 Operation of the Agreement

The Parties recognise that it is impractical in this Agreement to provide for every contingency which may arise during the life of the Agreement, and the Parties hereby agree that it is their intention that this Agreement shall operate fairly as between them, and without detriment to the interest of either of them, and that, if during the term of this Agreement either Party believes that this Agreement is operating unfairly, the Parties will use their best efforts to agree on such action as may be necessary to remove the cause or causes of such unfairness, but failure to agree on any action pursuant to this Clause shall not give rise to a dispute subject to arbitration in accordance with Clause 9 hereof.

9. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

9.1 Amicable settlement

The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the interpretation thereof.

9.2 Dispute resolution

- 9.2.1 Any dispute, difference or controversy of whatever nature howsoever arising under or out of or in relation to this Agreement (including its interpretation) between the Parties, and so notified in writing by either Party to the other Party (the "**Dispute**") shall, in the first instance, be attempted to be resolved amicably in accordance with the conciliation procedure set forth in Clause 9.3.
- 9.2.2 The Parties agree to use their best efforts for resolving all Disputes arising under or in respect of this Agreement promptly, equitably and in good faith, and further agree to provide each other with reasonable access during normal business hours to all non-privileged records, information and data pertaining to any Dispute.

9.3 Conciliation

In the event of any Dispute between the Parties, either Party may call upon the Director General, NMCG or the officer nominated by him, and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Consultant or a substitute thereof for amicable settlement, and upon such reference, the said persons shall meet no later than 10 (ten) days from the date of reference to discuss and attempt to amicably resolve the Dispute. If such meeting does not take place within the 10 (ten) day period or the Dispute is not amicably settled within 15 (fifteen) days of the meeting or the Dispute is not resolved as evidenced by the

signing of written terms of settlement within 30 (thirty) days of the notice in writing referred to in Clause 9.2.1 or such longer period as may be mutually agreed by the Parties, either Party may refer the Dispute to arbitration in accordance with the provisions of Clause 9.4.

9.4 **Arbitration**

- 9.4.1 Any Dispute which is not resolved amicably by conciliation, as provided in Clause 9.3, shall be finally decided by reference to arbitration by an Arbitral Tribunal appointed in accordance with Clause 9.4.2. Such arbitration shall be held in accordance with the Rules of Arbitration of the International Centre for Alternative Dispute Resolution, New Delhi (the "Rules"), or such other rules as may be mutually agreed by the Parties, and shall be subject to the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. The place of such arbitration shall be the capital of the State where the NMCG has its headquarters and the language of arbitration proceedings shall be English.
- There shall be [a sole arbitrator whose appointment] / [an Arbitral Tribunal of three arbitrators, of whom each Party shall select one, and the third arbitrator shall be appointed by the two arbitrators so selected, and in the event of disagreement between the two arbitrators, the appointment]² shall be made in accordance with the Rules.
- The arbitrators shall make a reasoned award (the "Award"). Any Award made in any arbitration held pursuant to this Clause 9 shall be final and binding on the Parties as from the date it is made, and the Consultant and the NMCG agree and undertake to carry out such Award without delay.
- The Consultant and the NMCG agree that an Award may be enforced against the Consultant and/or the NMCG, as the case may be, and their respective assets wherever situated.
- 9.4.5 This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall remain in full force and effect, pending the Award in any arbitration proceedings hereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of

Consultant: **NMCG**

> (Signature) (Signature) (Name) (Name) (Designation) (Designation) (Address) (Address)

² Where the Agreement Value specified in Clause 6.1.2 of this Agreement is expected to be less than Rs. 2 crore, the provision for a sole arbitrator shall be retained and where the Agreement Value is likely to be more than Rs. 2 crore, the provision for a Board shall be retained. Depending upon the Agreement Value, one of the two square parentheses shall be deleted from Clause 9.4.2 prior to issuance of the RFP.

In the presence of:

1. 2.

Annex-1

Terms of Reference

(Refer Clause 3.1.2)

(Reproduce Schedule-1 of RFP)

Annex-2

Cost of Services (Refer Clause 4.2 & 6.1)

(Reproduce BoQ as per Appendix-II)

Deliverables

Working Hours and Holidays for Consultant's Personnel (Refer Clause 4.5)

1. The Consultant shall:

- (a) ensure that the personnel engaged by them to observe the official timings, practices, etiquettes, norms etc. as is required from the officials of the NMCG or as communicated to them by the Nodal Officer (s) of the NMCG so authorised.
- (b) ensure that the personnel engaged by them to observe holidays as are applicable to the officials, employees, consultants of the Client. The Consultant shall ensure that all its Personnel deployed in NMCG enrol themselves in the biometric attendance system as applicable to the NMCG personnel. In case of Holidays, the norms applicable to the NMCG shall be applicable to the Personnel of the Consultant. However, in case of exigencies, the Client may require the Consultant to depute such Personnel to work on holidays and late hours without any additional payments in this regard. If the personnel are out of station on tour or otherwise, the Nodal Officer of the client shall be kept informed by the Consultant in this regard.

Payment Schedule

(Refer Clause 6.3)
To be reproduced from TOR.

Notes:

1. The above payments shall be made to the Consultant provided that the payments to be made at any time shall not exceed the amount certified by the Consultant in its Statement of Expenses.

Reimbursable Expenses

- 1. NMCG shall make payment to the Consultant for all such reimbursable expenses as incurred by the Consultant or their Personnel for outstation visit(s) (outside Delhi National Capital Region (NCR) area) as may be required for providing services under this contract, provided that such outstation work has been approved by the NMCG and evidenced by submission of supporting documents.
- 2. The reimbursable expenses shall include, travel from the NMCG's office/ residence of Personnel to local airport or railway station, air, rail and / or car travel to place of visit(s), local travel allowance in place(s) of visit(s), boarding and lodging allowances for the period of stay, return fare from place(s) of visit(s) to the NMCG's office, among other such minor project related and approved expenditures by the NMCG for purposes of rendering services.
- 3. NMCG shall make payment for the reimbursable expenses at the rate as applicable for the NMCG personnel of the corresponding level and in manner as mentioned in terms of Clause GC 6.3. Further, all travel would require prior approval from NMCG concerned. The rates applicable for the purposes of reimbursements shall be lower of the actual as incurred or as mentioned herein below as approved by the NMCG:

Class of	Local	Daily Allowance (INR/Day)								
Travel	Conveyance	As per Actuals (Maximum Ceiling)								
	(office	Boarding	Hotel Hotel							
	purpose)		(State	(Other						
	(On approval		Capitals)	Towns)						
	by the Client)									
Air- Economy	Taxi @ Rupees	Reimbursable	Rupees four	Rupees Three						
/ AC-II (For	Fifteen per	on actual, the	thousand	Thousand						
outstation	kilometre (INR	expenditure	(INR 4,000/-)	(INR 3,000/-)						
travel –	15/ Km) or	should not	only.	only.						
Distance upto	rates decided	exceed Rupees								
five hundred	by NMCG	Six Hundred								
(500)		and Fifty (INR								
kilometres		650/-) only.								
should be										
travelled by										
train wherever										
it is										
reasonably										
feasible and										
possible										

Note: Any revision in the reimbursable expenses as per NMCG policy will be effected.

Letter of Award

Bank Guarantee for Performance Security

(Refer Clause 7.1.1)

To

In consideration of "National Mission for Clean Ganga", (hereinafter referred to as "NMCG") which expression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof, include its successors, administrators and assigns) awarding to, having its office at
We,
2. We,
3. We, (indicate the name of the Bank) do hereby undertake to pay to the NMCG any money so demanded notwithstanding any dispute or disputes raised by the Consultant in any suit or proceeding pending before any court or tribunal relating thereto, our liability under this present being absolute and unequivocal. The payment so made by us under this bond shall be a valid discharge of our liability for payment thereunder and the Consultant shall have no claim against us for making such payment.
4. We, (indicate the name of Bank) further agree that the Guarantee herein contained shall remain in full force and effect during the period that would be required for the performance of the said Agreement and that it shall continue to be enforceable till all the dues of the NMCG under or by virtue of the said Agreement have been fully paid and its claims satisfied or discharged or till the NMCG certifies that the terms and conditions of the said Agreement have been fully and properly carried out by the said Consultant and accordingly discharges this Guarantee. Unless a demand or claim under this Guarantee is made on us in

writing on or before a period of one year from the date of this Guarantee, we shall be d	ischarged
from all liability under this Guarantee thereafter.	

5. We, (indicate the name of Bank) further agree with the NMCG th	hat
the NMCG shall have the fullest liberty without our consent and without affecting in a	ny
manner our obligations hereunder to vary any of the terms and conditions of the said Agreeme	ent
or to extend time of performance by the said Consultant from time to time or to postpone if	for
any time or from time to time any of the powers exercisable by the NMCG against the sa	aid
Consultant and to forbear or enforce any of the terms and conditions relating to the sa	aid
Agreement and we shall not be relieved from our liability by reason of any such variation,	or
extension being granted to the said Consultant or for any forbearance, act or omission on t	the
part of the NMCG or any indulgence by the NMCG to the said Consultant or any such mat	ter
or thing whatsoever which under the law relating to sureties would, but for this provision, ha	ıve
the effect of so relieving us.	

6.	This Guarantee	will not be	discharged	due to the	he change	in the co	onstitution	of the	Bank
or the (Consultant (s).								

7. We,	indicate the name of Bank) lastly undertake not to revoke this
Guarantee during its currency	except with the previous consent of the NMCG in writing.

8. For the avoidance of doubt, the Bank's liability	under this Guarantee shall be restricted
to Rs crore (Rupees	crore) only. The Bank shall be liable to
pay the said amount or any part thereof only if the NN	ICG serves a written claim on the Bank
in accordance with Paragraph 2 hereof, on or before [].

For	•••••	••••	•••	• • •	• • •	• • •	••	• •	 	•	• •	• •	• •	••	••	••	••	••	••	••	••	٠.	• •	•	••	••	• •	

Name of Bank:

Seal of the Bank:

Dated, theday of, 20.....

(Signature, name and designation of the authorised signatory)

NOTES:

- (i) The Bank Guarantee should contain the name, designation and code number of the officer(s) signing the Guarantee.
- (ii) The address, telephone no. and other details of the Head Office of the Bank as well as of issuing Branch should be mentioned on the covering letter of issuing Branch.

SCHEDULE-3

(See Clause 2.3.3)

Guidance Note on Conflict of Interest

- 1. This Note further explains and illustrates the provisions of Clause 2.3 of the RFP and shall be read together therewith in dealing with specific cases.
- 2. Consultants should be deemed to be in a conflict of interest situation if it can be reasonably concluded that their position in a business or their personal interest could improperly influence their judgment in the exercise of their duties. The process for selection of Consultants should avoid both actual and perceived conflict of interest.
- 3. Conflict of interest may arise between the NMCG and a Consultant or between Consultants and present or future concessionaries/ contractors. Some of the situations that would involve conflict of interest are identified below:
 - (a) NMCG and Consultants:
 - (i) Potential Consultant should not be privy to information from the NMCG which is not available to others;
 - (ii) potential Consultant should not have defined the project when earlier working for the NMCG;
 - (iii) potential Consultant should not have recently worked for the NMCG overseeing the project.
 - (b) Consultants and concessionaires/contractors:
 - (i) No Consultant should have an ownership interest or a continuing business interest or an on-going relationship with a potential concessionaire/ contractor save and except relationships restricted to project-specific and short-term assignments; or
 - (ii) no Consultant should be involved in owning or operating entities resulting from the project; or
 - (iii) no Consultant should bid for works arising from the project.

The participation of companies that may be involved as investors or consumers and officials of the NMCG who have current or recent connections to the companies involved, therefore, needs to be avoided.

4. The normal way to identify conflicts of interest is through self-declaration by Consultants. Where a conflict exists, which has not been declared, competing companies are likely to bring this to the notice of the NMCG. All conflicts must be declared as and when the Consultants become aware of them.

- 5. Another approach towards avoiding a conflict of interest is through the use of "Chinese walls" to avoid the flow of commercially sensitive information from one part of the Consultant's company to another. This could help overcome the problem of availability of limited numbers of experts for the project. However, in reality effective operation of "Chinese walls" may be a difficult proposition. As a general rule, larger companies will be more capable of adopting Chinese walls approach than smaller companies. Although, "Chinese walls" have been relatively common for many years, they are an increasingly discredited means of avoiding conflicts of interest and should be considered with caution. As a rule, "Chinese walls" should be considered as unacceptable and may be accepted only in exceptional cases upon full disclosure by a Consultant coupled with provision of safeguards to the satisfaction of the NMCG.
- 6. Another way to avoid conflicts of interest is through the appropriate grouping of tasks. For example, conflicts may arise if Consultants drawing up the terms of reference or the proposed documentation are also eligible for the consequent assignment or project.
- 7. Another form of conflict of interest called "scope-creep" arises when Consultants advocate either an unnecessary broadening of the terms of reference or make recommendations which are not in the best interests of the NMCG but which will generate further work for the Consultants. Some forms of contractual arrangements are more likely to lead to scope-creep. For example, lump-sum contracts provide fewer incentives for this, while time and material contracts provide built in incentives for Consultants to extend the length of their assignment.
- 8. Every project contains potential conflicts of interest. Consultants should not only avoid any conflict of interest, they should report any present/ potential conflict of interest to the NMCG at the earliest. Officials of the NMCG involved in development of a project shall be responsible for identifying and resolving any conflicts of interest. It should be ensured that safeguards are in place to preserve fair and open competition and measures should be taken to eliminate any conflict of interest arising at any stage in the process.

APPENDICES

APPENDIX-I (See Clause 2.1.3)

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

Form-1

Letter of Proposal

(On Bidder's letter head)

(Date and Ref	erence)
To,	
•••••	
•••••	
Sub:	RFP for Selection of Consultant Firm for Procurement Management Support Services
Ref:	RFP No
Dear Sir,	

With reference to your RFP Document dated, I/we, having examined all relevant documents and understood their contents, hereby submit our Proposal for the subject Project. The proposal is unconditional and unqualified.

- 1. All information provided in the Proposal and in the Appendices is true and correct and all documents accompanying such Proposal are true copies of their respective originals.
- 2. This statement is made for the express purpose of appointment as Consultant for the aforesaid project.
- 3. I/We shall make available to the NMCG any additional information it may deem necessary or require for supplementing or authenticating the Proposal.
- 4. I/We acknowledge the right of the NMCG to reject our Proposal without assigning any reason or otherwise and hereby waive our right to challenge the same on any account whatsoever.
- 5. I/We certify that in the last three years, we or any of our Associates have neither failed to perform on any contract, as evidenced by imposition of a penalty by an arbitral or judicial authority or a judicial pronouncement or arbitration award against the Bidder, nor been expelled from any project or contract by any public authority nor have had any contract terminated by any public authority for breach on our part.
- 6. I/We declare that:
 - (a) I/We have examined and have no reservations to the RFP Documents, including any Addendum issued by the NMCG;

- (b) I/We do not have any Conflict of Interest in accordance with Clause 2.3 of the RFP Document;
- (c) I/We have not directly or indirectly or through an agent engaged or indulged in any corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice, as defined in Clause 4.3 of the RFP document, in respect of any tender or request for proposal issued by or any agreement entered into with the NMCG or any other public sector enterprise or any government, Central or State; and
- (d) I/We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that in conformity with the provisions of Section 4 of the RFP, no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in any corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice.
- 7. I/We understand that you may cancel the Selection Process at any time and that you are neither bound to accept any Proposal that you may receive nor to select the Consultant, without incurring any liability to the Bidders in accordance with Clause 2.8 of the RFP document.
- 8. I/We declare that we/any member of the consortium, are/is not a Member of a/any other Consortium applying for Selection as a Procurement Management Consultant.
- 9. I/We certify that in regard to matters other than security and integrity of the country, we or any of our Associates have not been convicted by a Court of Law or indicted or adverse orders passed by a regulatory authority which would cast a doubt on our ability to undertake the Consultancy for the Project or which relates to a grave offence that outrages the moral sense of the community.
- 10. I/We further certify that in regard to matters relating to security and integrity of the country, we have not been charge-sheeted by any agency of the Government or convicted by a Court of Law for any offence committed by us or by any of our Associates.
- 11. I/We further certify that no investigation by a regulatory authority is pending either against us or against our Associates or against our CEO or any of our Directors/ Managers/ employees.
- 12. I/We hereby irrevocably waive any right or remedy which we may have at any stage at law or howsoever otherwise arising to challenge or question any decision taken by the NMCG in connection with the selection of Consultant or in connection with the Selection Process itself in respect of the above mentioned Project.
- 13. The Bid Securing Declaration Form, in accordance with the RFP document.
- 14. I/We agree and understand that the proposal is subject to the provisions of the RFP document. In no case, shall I/we have any claim or right of whatsoever nature if the Consultancy for the Project is not awarded to me/us or our proposal is not opened or rejected.
- 15. I/We agree to keep this offer valid for 180 (one hundred eighty) days from the Proposal Due Date specified in the RFP.

- 16. A Power of Attorney in favour of the authorised signatory to sign and submit this Proposal and documents is attached herewith in Form-4.
- 17. In the event of my/our firm/consortium being selected as the Consultant, I/we agree to enter into an Agreement in accordance with the form at Schedule–2 of the RFP. We agree not to seek any changes in the aforesaid form and agree to abide by the same.
- 18. I/We have studied RFP and all other documents carefully. We understand that except to the extent as expressly set forth in the Agreement, we shall have no claim, right or title arising out of any documents or information provided to us by the NMCG or in respect of any matter arising out of or concerning or relating to the Selection Process including the award of Consultancy.
- 19. The Financial Proposal is submitted in appropriate section on e-procurement portal. This Technical Proposal read with the Financial Proposal shall constitute the Proposal which shall be binding on us.
- 20. I/We agree and undertake to abide by all the terms and conditions of the RFP Document. In witness thereof, I/we submit this Proposal under and in accordance with the terms of the RFP Document.

Yours faithfully,

(Signature, name and designation of the authorised signatory)
(Name and seal of the Bidder/Lead Member)

Form-2

Particulars of the Bidder

1.1	Title of Consultancy:
1.2	Title of Project:
	Project
1.3	State the following:
	Name of Company or Firm:
	Legal status (e.g. incorporated private company, unincorporated business, partnership etc.):
	Country of incorporation:
	Registered address:
	Year of Incorporation:
	Year of commencement of business:
	Principal place of business:
	Brief description of the Company including details of its main lines of business
	Name, designation, address and phone numbers of authorised signatory of the Bidder:
	Name:
	Designation:
	Company:
	Address:
	Phone No.:
	E-mail address:
1.4	For the Bidder, , state the following information:
	(i) In case of non Indian Firm, does the Firm have business presence in India?
	Yes/No
	If so, provide the office address(es) in India.
	(ii) Has the Bidder been penalized by any organization for poor quality of work or breach of contract in the last five years?

Yes/No (iii) Has the Bidder ever failed to complete any work awarded to it by any public authority/ entity in last five years? Yes/No (iv) Has the Bidder been blacklisted by any Government department/Public Sector Undertaking in the last five years? Yes/No (v) Has the Bidder, , suffered bankruptcy/insolvency in the last five years? Yes/No Note: If answer to any of the questions at (ii) to (v) is yes, the Bidder is not eligible for this consultancy assignment. 1.5 Does the Bidder's firm/company combine functions as a Consultant or adviser along with the functions as a contractor and/or a manufacturer? Yes/No If yes, does the Bidder agree to limit the Bidder's role only to that of a Consultant/ adviser to the NMCG and to disqualify themselves, their affiliates, subsidiaries and/or parent organization subsequently from work on this Project in any other capacity? Yes/No 1.6 Does the Bidder intend to borrow or hire temporarily, personnel from contractors, manufacturers or suppliers for performance of the Consulting Services? Yes/No If yes, does the Bidder agree that it will only be acceptable as Consultant, if those contractors, manufacturers and suppliers disqualify themselves from subsequent execution of work on this Project (including tendering relating to any goods or services for any other part of the Project) other than that of the Consultant? Yes/No If yes, have any undertakings been obtained (and annexed) from such contractors, manufacturers, etc. that they agree to disqualify themselves from subsequent execution of work on this Project and they agree to limit their role to that of Consultant/ adviser for the NMCG only? Yes/No (Signature, name and designation of the authorised signatory) For and on behalf of

Form-3

Statement of Legal Capacity (To be forwarded on the letter head of the Bidder)

Ref. Date:
To,
Dear Sir,
Sub: RFP for Selection of Consultant Firm for Procurement Management Support Services
Ref: RFP No
I/We hereby confirm that we, the Bidder (along with other members in case of consortium, the constitution of which has been described in the Proposal ^{\$}), satisfy the terms and conditions laid down in the RFP document.
I/We have agreed that (insert Bidder's name) will act as the Lead Member of our consortium.
I/We have agreed that
(Signature, name and designation of the authorised signatory) For and on behalf of

[§] Please strike out whichever is not applicable

Form-4

Power of Attorney

Know all men by these presents, we, (name of Firm and address of
the registered office) do hereby constitute, nominate, appoint and authorise Mr
Ms son/daughter/wife and presently residing a
, who is presently employed with us and holding the position of
as our true and lawful attorney (hereinafter referred to as the "Authorised
Representative") to do in our name and on our behalf, all such acts, deeds and things as are
necessary or required in connection with or incidental to submission of our Proposal for and
selection of consultant firm for Procurement Management Support Services, including but no
limited to signing and submission of all Proposals, proposals and other documents and writings
participating in pre-bid and other conferences and providing information/ responses to the
NMCG, representing us in all matters before the NMCG, signing and execution of all contracts
and undertakings consequent to acceptance of our proposal and generally dealing with the
NMCG in all matters in connection with or relating to or arising out of our Proposal for the said Project and/or upon award thereof to us till the entering into of the Agreement with the
NMCG.
TWICG.
AND, we do hereby agree to ratify and confirm all acts, deeds and things lawfully done or
caused to be done by our said Authorised Representative pursuant to and in exercise of the
powers conferred by this Power of Attorney and that all acts, deeds and things done by our said
Authorised Representative in exercise of the powers hereby conferred shall and shall always
be deemed to have been done by us.
DI WITNESS WITEDESE WE
IN WITNESS WHEREOF WE,
HAVE EXECUTED THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY ON THIS
OF, 20
For
(Signature name designation and address)
(Signature, name, designation and address)
Witnesses:
1.
2.
Notarised
Accepted
(Signature, name, designation and address of the Attorney
Notes:

• The mode of execution of the Power of Attorney should be in accordance with the procedure, if any, laid down by the applicable law and the charter documents of the executant(s) and when it is so required the same should be under common seal affixed in accordance with the required procedure. The Power of Attorney should be executed on a non-judicial stamp paper of Rs. 100 (hundred) and duly notarised by a notary public.

- Wherever required, the Bidder should submit for verification the extract of the charter documents and other documents such as a resolution/power of attorney in favour of the person executing this Power of Attorney for the delegation of power hereunder on behalf of the Bidder.
- For a Power of Attorney executed and issued overseas, the document will also have to be legalised by the Indian Embassy and notarised in the jurisdiction where the Power of Attorney is being issued. However, Bidders from countries that have signed the Hague Legislation Convention 1961 need not get their Power of Attorney legalised by the Indian Embassy if it carries a conforming Apostille certificate.

Form-5

Financial Capacity of the Bidder

(Refer Clause 2.2.2 (B))

S. No.	Financial Year	Annual Turnover (Rs.)
1.		
2.		
3.		

Copies of audited balance sheet and Profit & Loss account for the above financial years should be attached.

Form-6

Particulars of Key Personnel

S. No.	Designation of Key Personnel	Name	Educational Qualification	C C	Present Em	No. of Eligible	
					Name of Firm	Employed Since	Assignments
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)
1.							
2.							
3.							
4.							
5.							
6.							

Form-7

Proposed Methodology and Work Plan

The proposed methodology and work plan shall be described as follows:

1. Understanding of TOR (not more than two pages)

The Bidder shall clearly state its understanding of the TOR and also highlight its important aspects. The Bidder may supplement various requirements of the TOR and also make precise suggestions if it considers this would bring more clarity and assist in achieving the Objectives laid down in the TOR.

2. Methodology and Work Plan (not more than five pages)

The Bidder will submit its methodology for carrying out this assignment, outlining its approach toward achieving the Objectives laid down in the TOR. The Bidder will submit a brief write up on its proposed team and organisation of personnel explaining how different areas of expertise needed for this assignment have been fully covered by its proposal. In case the Bidder is a consortium, it should specify how the expertise of each firm is proposed to be utilised for this assignment. The Bidder should specify the sequence and locations of important activities, and provide a quality assurance plan for carrying out the Consultancy Services.

Note: Marks will be deducted for writing lengthy and out of context responses.

APPENDIX-I Form-8

Abstract of Eligible Assignments of the Bidder^{\$}

(Refer Clause 3.1.4, (A))

S.No	Name of	Name	Start	End	Estimated cost	Total value	Payment ^{\$\$} of
	Project	of	Date	Date	of Project (in	of the	professional
		Client			Rs. crore/ US\$	Professional	fees received
					million)	fees	by the Bidder
							(in Rs. crore)
(1) [£]	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)
1							
2							
3							
4							

The Bidder should provide details of only those projects that have been undertaken by it under its own name or by its associate. If the project has been undertaken by the associate, a certificate for associate relationship shall be submitted in the format prescribed in form no. 13 Appendix I.

Certificate from the Statutory Auditor^{\$}

This is to certify that the information contained in Column 6, 7, 8 & 9 above are correct as per the accounts/documents of the Bidder and/ or the clients produced before us.

Name of the audit firm:

Seal of the audit firm

Date:

(Signature, name and designation of the authorised signatory)

Note: The Bidder may attach separate sheets to provide brief particulars of other relevant experience of the Bidder.

^{\$\$} Exchange rate for conversion of US \$ shall be as per Clause 1.7.1.

The names and chronology of Eligible Projects included here should conform to the project-wise details submitted in Form-10 of Appendix-I.

[§] In case the Bidder does not have a statutory auditor, it shall provide the certificate from its chartered accountant that ordinarily audits the annual accounts of the Bidder.

Form-9

Abstract of Eligible Assignments of Key Personnel§

(Refer Clause 3.1.4, (B))

Name of Key Personnel:

Designation:

S.No	Name of Project ^{\$}	Name of Client	Estimated cost of project (in Rs. cr./ US\$ million)	Name of firm for which the Key Personnel worked	Designation of the Key Personnel on the assignment	Category of procurement (Works/ Good/ Consulting/ Non-Consulting)	Status (if not completed, probable date of completion)	Whether project under PPP (for works)	Whether project under water/waste water sector [Yes/No]
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)		
1									
2									
3									
4									
5									
•••									
• • •									

^{\$} Use separate Form for each Key Personnel.

Note: The Bidder may attach separate sheets to provide brief particulars of other relevant experience of the Key Personnel.

^{\$\$} The names and chronology of projects included here should conform to the project-wise details submitted in Form-11 of Appendix-I.

Form-10

Eligible Assignments of Bidder

(Refer Clause 3.1.4)

1.	Name of Bidder:	
2.	Name of the Project:	
3.	Description of services performed by the Bidder Firm:	
4.	Name of client and Address: (indicate whether public or private)	
5.	Name and telephone no. of client's representative:	
6.	Estimated cost of the Project (in Rs crore or US\$ million):	
7.	Payment received by the Bidder (in Rs. crore):	
8.	Start date of the services (month/ year):	
9.	Finish date of the services (month/ year):	
10.	Brief description of the Project:	
	certified that the aforesaid information is true wledge and belief.	and correct to the best of my
	(Sign	ature and name of Authorised Signatory)

Notes:

- 1. Use separate sheet for each Eligible Project.
- 2. The Bidder may attach separate sheets to provide brief particulars of other relevant experience of the Bidder. The experience claimed by the Bidder shall be substantiated with suitable certificates such as work order/LoA/completion certificate from the client.
- 3. Exchange rate for conversion of US \$ shall be as per Clause 1.7.1.

<u>Form-11</u>

Eligible Assignments of Key Personnel (Refer Clause 3.1.4)

1.	Name of Key Personnel:	
2.	Designation of Key Personnel:	
3.	Name of the Project/Assignment:	
4.	Category of Procurement (Works/Good/Consulting/Non-Consulting Services)	
5.	If it is works, whether it is undertaken PPP mode	
6.	Whether the assignment is in water/wastewater sector	
7.	Whether the assignment has been undertaken using Standard Bidding Document developed for a particular purpose/by an agency/the bidder a) i) If Yes, indicate the Standard Bidding Document (SBD) used (such as World Bank, NHAI, JICA, ADB, Central/State Government/ PSUs). ii) Indicate other project/ assignment that are claimed for experience along with this project in the bid (using the SBD referred above). b) If No, provide the details of differences in the documents supported with evidence.	
8.	Details for the experience in line with Clause 3.1.4 (B)	
9.	Name of Consulting Firm where employed:	
10.	Description of services performed by the Key Personnel (including designation):	
11.	Name of client and Address:	

	(indicate whether public or private)				
12.	2. Name and telephone no. of client's representative:				
13.	3. Estimated cost of the Project (in Rs crore or US\$ million):				
14.	4. Start date of the services (month/ year):				
15.	5. Finish date of the services (month/ year):				
16.	16. Brief description of the Project:				
	It is certified that the aforesaid information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.				
	(Signature and nam	e of Key Personnel)			

Notes:

- 1. Use separate sheet for each Eligible Project.
- 2. The Bidder may attach separate sheets to provide brief particulars of other relevant experience of the Key Personnel.
- 3. Exchange rate for conversion of US \$ shall be as per Clause 1.7.1.
- 4. Assignments/activities undertaken through same standard bidding document shall be considered as one assignment irrespective of number of projects under it. Standard Bidding Documents means, the tender documents either prescribed by the Employer/Government/ Multilateral agencies or developed by the consultant for their clients for implementing multiple projects/services in the same infrastructure sector. Using different technical specifications in the standard bidding documents shall not be claimed as different projects/assignments. The Bidder may also note that if multiple projects/assignments with the based on same standard bidding document are claimed for eligibility, such projects will not be considered for evaluation.

<u>Form-12</u>

Curriculum Vitae (CV) of Key Personnel

Place	1.	Propo	sed Position:	
 Nationality: Educational Qualifications: Employment Record: (Starting with present position, list in reverse order every employment held.) Details of projects/assignments on which the Personnel has worked Name of project Description of responsibilities Details of the current assignment and the time duration for which services are reconstructed for the current assignment. Certification: I am willing to work on the Project and I will be available for entire duration the Project assignment as required. I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. 	2.	Name	of Personnel:	
 Educational Qualifications: Employment Record: (Starting with present position, list in reverse order every employment held.) Details of projects/assignments on which the Personnel has worked Name of project Description of responsibilities Details of the current assignment and the time duration for which services are reconstructed for the current assignment. Certification: I am willing to work on the Project and I will be available for entire duration the Project assignment as required. I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. (Signature and name of the Key Personal Place	3.	Date of	of Birth:	
 6. Employment Record: (Starting with present position, list in reverse order every employment held.) 7. Details of projects/assignments on which the Personnel has worked Name of project Description of responsibilities 8. Details of the current assignment and the time duration for which services are reconstructed for the current assignment. Certification: 1	4.	Nation	nality:	
(Starting with present position, list in reverse order every employment held.) 7. Details of projects/assignments on which the Personnel has worked Name of project Description of responsibilities 8. Details of the current assignment and the time duration for which services are reconstructed for the current assignment. Certification: 1 I am willing to work on the Project and I will be available for entire duration the Project assignment as required. 2 I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. (Signature and name of the Key Personal Place	5.	Educa	tional Qualifications:	
Name of project Description of responsibilities 8. Details of the current assignment and the time duration for which services are reconstructed for the current assignment. Certification: 1 I am willing to work on the Project and I will be available for entire duration the Project assignment as required. 2 I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. (Signature and name of the Key Personal Place	6.	Emplo	oyment Record:	
Name of project Description of responsibilities 8. Details of the current assignment and the time duration for which services are received for the current assignment. Certification: 1 I am willing to work on the Project and I will be available for entire duration the Project assignment as required. 2 I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. (Signature and name of the Key Person Place		(Starti	ng with present position, l	ist in reverse order every employment held.)
8. Details of the current assignment and the time duration for which services are reconstructed for the current assignment. Certification: 1	7.	Detail	s of projects/assignments	on which the Personnel has worked
for the current assignment. Certification: 1		Nar	ne of project	Description of responsibilities
I am willing to work on the Project and I will be available for entire durate the Project assignment as required. I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. (Signature and name of the Key Person Place	8.			nt and the time duration for which services are required
the Project assignment as required. 2 I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. (Signature and name of the Key Person Place		Certifi	cation:	
correctly describes me, my qualifications and my experience. (Signature and name of the Key Person		1	_	<u> </u>
Place		2	_	•
Place				
Place				
				(Signature and name of the Key Personnel)
(Cionatama and name of the anthonical signature of the D	Place			
(Signature and name of the authorised signatory of the Bi			(Signa	ture and name of the authorised signatory of the Bidder

Notes:

- 1. Use separate form for each Key Personnel
- 2. Each page of the CV shall be signed and dated by both the Personnel concerned and by the Authorised Representative of the Bidder firm along with the seal of the firm.

Form-13

Certificate for Associate from Statutory Auditor

Certificate regarding Associate

By virtue of the aforesaid, the latter exercises control over the former, who is an Associate.]

[..... (name of Bidder/Member/Associate) has the power, directly or indirectly, to direct or influence the management and policies of (Bidder/Member) by operation of law, contract or otherwise]. By virtue of the aforesaid, the former exercises control over the latter, who is an Associate.]

A brief description of the said equity held, directly or indirectly, is given below:

{Describe the share-holding of the Bidder/Member and the Associate. In the event the Associate is under common Control with the Associate/Consortium Member or the Control is exercised by operation of law, the relationship may be suitably described and similarly certified herein.}

Signature, name and designation of the authorized signatory of the Statutory Auditor:

Name, Address & Seal of the Statutory Auditor

<u>Form-14</u>

FORM OF BID SECURING DECLARATION

Date:	
Tender Reference No.:	
Project Name:	
To:	
We, the undersigned, declare th	nat:
We understand that, according Declaration.	to your conditions, Bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing
submitting Proposals in any cor	matically be suspended from being eligible for Bidding, or stract with the Employer for the period of time of 6 (six) months we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the Bid conditions,
(a) have submitted a non-respo	nsive proposal; or
(b) have withdrawn our Bid du	ring the period of Bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid; or
validity, (i) fail or refuse to	acceptance of our Bid by the Employer during the period of Bid execute the Contract, if required, or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish accordance with the Bid conditions.
	ng Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, ion of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight Bid.
Name of the Bidder	
Name of the person duly author	rized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder
Title of the person signing the l	Bid
Signature of the person named	above
Date signed	day of ,

APPENDIX-II (See Clause 2.1.3)

Financial Proposal (BoQ)

(This form is provided at https:/eprocure.gov.in/eprocure/app. Bidders are advised to download and fill the required details in the permitted cells and upload the same)